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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Good morning.

          3  Welcome to this Hearing of the Consumer Affairs

          4  Committee.  I am Leroy Comrie, Chair of the

          5  Committee.  We settled on our Budget last night, we

          6  didn't leave the building until after 1:00 o'clock

          7  in the morning, so I figure this for being a long

          8  time, in my book.  Even considering we didn't get

          9  home until 2:30 last night.

         10                 Today we will be reviewing Proposed

         11  Introductory Bill No. 296- A and 304 concerning the

         12  sale of gasoline.  We will also be taking testimony

         13  on Intro. 290, concerning disclosure requirements

         14  for credit counseling agencies.  This is our first

         15  Hearing on these bills.

         16                 The Committee originally planned to

         17  review these topics independently; however, due to

         18  budget negotiations a number of scheduling conflicts

         19  necessitated both issues being heard today. I

         20  apologize if this seems unorthodox, but we will do

         21  our best to make things go smoothly.

         22                 As we all know, local income taxes

         23  and high demands for space contributes to making New

         24  York City one of the costliest places to live in

         25  America.  Today, rising gasoline prices is further
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          2  causing us financial strain on New Yorkers.  For a

          3  family to accommodate gasoline prices of more than

          4  $3.00 per gallon, necessities often must be scaled

          5  down.  In fact, the recent poll suggested that 56

          6  percent of Americans had cut back on household

          7  spending because of increased gasoline costs.  In

          8  addition to rising fuel rates for personal use,

          9  consumers are already seeing increased shipping

         10  costs, included in the prices of many products.

         11  Today we will consider legislation aimed at

         12  establishing guidelines for an industry under

         13  greater consumer scrutiny.

         14                 Proposed Introduction No. 296- A

         15  would prohibit gas retail stations from changing

         16  prices more than once every twenty four hours so

         17  that consumers would be secure that posted prices

         18  would not inexplicably increase or at least one full

         19  day.  Gasoline retailers would also be required to

         20  report the daily volume of gasoline sold, the unit

         21  price per gallon, plus the time and date when it

         22  changed to the posted gasoline prices was made.

         23  Records would be available to the Department of

         24  Consumer Affairs for at lease one year.

         25                 Introductory Bill 304 would require
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          2  gasoline retail outlets to issue a report at least

          3  twice a week to DCA, including the price per gallon

          4  of the retail outlets publicly sold gasoline, as

          5  well as the daily prices prior to the reporting day.

          6  Intro. 304 would require the Department of Consumer

          7  Affairs, to provide an internet database publicizing

          8  the information contained in the Retail Outlet

          9  Report.  Consumers would be able to search the

         10  database and make comparisons within it by borough

         11  and zip code and brand.  Every retail outlet would

         12  also be required to conspicuously post an on site

         13  notice about the availability of the DCA website.

         14                 To speak on Introductory bills 296

         15  and 304, the Committee has invited the

         16  Administration, as well as organizations

         17  representing the automobile owners and fuel service

         18  stations.  The Federal Trade Commission has made

         19  rigorous efforts  to halt deceptive credit

         20  counseling operations to mislead consumers into

         21  expensive consolidation programs, when those

         22  consumers may be better off filing for bankruptcy.

         23  After working with an unscrupulous credit counseling

         24  agency debtors frequently take high interest loans

         25  against real estate interests to pay off outstanding
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          2  balances.  However, often times consumers may end up

          3  deeper in debt or worse, the lender may foreclose

          4  and acquire the collateralized property.

          5                 The Bankruptcy Prevention and

          6  Consumer Protection Act of 2005 was the largest

          7  reform of the bankruptcy code since its 1978

          8  inception. The Act requires among its many

          9  provisions that bankruptcy advocates get credit

         10  counseling from an approved, non profit organization

         11  no more than six months before filing for insolvency

         12  protection.  Given the scope and significance of the

         13  Federal Legislation, consumers have a serious

         14  interest in clearly understanding a credit

         15  counsellor's qualification.

         16                 The Department of Justice reviews

         17  creditor counsellor applications, approves the

         18  organizations and monitors their operation.  To

         19  demonstrate qualification, an agency must meet

         20  strict personnel guidelines and have a board of

         21  directors, the majority of which may not benefit

         22  financially from the outcome of the agency's

         23  counselling services.  Qualified credit counselling

         24  agencies are also prohibited from disclosing client

         25  information. Counselling sessions must include an
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          2  evaluation of the client's personal financial

          3  situation and a discussion of alternative to

          4  bankruptcy, including a budget plan.

          5                 Intro. 290 would require any credit

          6  counselling service that is not approved by the

          7  Federal Government for bankruptcy counselling to

          8  disclose its status on all company literature and

          9  printed media advertisements.  Further, a sign would

         10  have to be posted on the credit counselling agency's

         11  premises indicating the agency's status as a non-

         12  federally approved credit counsellor and provide

         13  information on locating a federally approved

         14  counsellor.  The Department of Consumer Affairs

         15  would be required to post violators on its website

         16  for 12 months following a violation.  To speak on

         17  Introductory Bill 290 we have invited DCA, as well

         18  as groups representing bankruptcy and credit

         19  counselling industry.

         20                 Before we take testimony I would like

         21  to acknowledge that we have representatives from

         22  Betsy Gotbaum's office here today.  She could not be

         23  with us, but they will be here monitoring the

         24  meeting.  I also want to recognize Council Member

         25  John Liu, Chair of the Transportation Committee, a
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          2  Member of this Committee and the lead sponsor of

          3  296- A.  And I would also like to recognize Council

          4  Member Jim Gennaro, Chair of the Environmental

          5  Protection Committee and Member of this Committee

          6  and lead sponsor of Introductory Bill 290.  Council

          7  Member Gennaro, would you like to speak on your

          8  proposal, before we hear from the witnesses?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes.  Thank

         10  you Mr. Chairman.  I want to thank you specifically

         11  for holding this Hearing today on Intro. 290, I did

         12  have a prepared statement, most of which was covered

         13  by your comprehensive opening statement.  I

         14  certainly appreciate that.  I want to echo some of

         15  your words that are critically important that we

         16  probe Intro. 290 in order to help people who are in

         17  dire financial straits.  And I believe we owe it to

         18  our fellow New Yorkers who are in financial distress

         19  to help them separate the qualified trustworthy

         20  financial counsellors, those that have been approved

         21  by the Federal Government, from those that would

         22  only seek to cheat and swindle them.  And I believe

         23  that this legislation provides the help that they

         24  need.  I just want to thank you again, Mr. Chairman,

         25  and those who have come to speak on the bill. I want
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          2  to thank in a special way Martha Keys, one of my

          3  constituents, who works in this area and has been

          4  very helpful to me in compiling a lot of the

          5  information that we used to draft this bill.  So

          6  thank you Martha.  Thank you Mr. Chairman and I look

          7  forward to today's Hearing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  We

          9  are going to 290 first, and then move to the other

         10  two bills.

         11                 I especially want to thank my

         12  Legislative Counsel, Thomas Ferrugia and Brian

         13  Sogol, Legislative Policy Analyst.  I am a little

         14  tired so I am mangling words this morning, but I

         15  want to thank them for laying out my opening

         16  statement in a manner I could read without mangling

         17  every word, especially since we had a Hearing

         18  yesterday morning that went two hours and we were

         19  here until almost 1:30 last night and I didn't get

         20  home until about 3:00.  I really appreciate

         21  everything that they did to prepare for the Hearing

         22  yesterday and for the Hearing today.

         23                 Without further adieu we'll ask the

         24  Department of Consumer Affairs to come to the table

         25  and thank Mr. Eiler for his statement that he will
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          2  make, in advance of his speaking this morning.  You

          3  can just limit your comments to just 290 right now,

          4  and then we will talk about the other two bills

          5  after.  Thank you.

          6                 MR. EILER: Thank you.  Okay.  Good

          7  morning Chairman Comrie and Committee Members.  I am

          8  Andrew Eiler, Director of Legislation for the

          9  Department of Consumer Affairs.  Commissioner Mintz

         10  asked me to thank you for the opportunity to appear

         11  before you to comment on the package of bills you

         12  are considering this morning.

         13                 As you requested, I will address my

         14  initial remarks to Intro. 290, the first item that

         15  was on the Committee's agenda. The subject is of New

         16  York City residents falling prey to fraudulent

         17  schemes presented under the guise of financial

         18  assistance and/or credit counseling.  Specifically,

         19  Intro. 290 addresses the recently revised Bankruptcy

         20  Law mandating those filing for bankruptcy to seek

         21  counseling from a federally approved bankruptcy

         22  credit counselors.  This legislation seeks to

         23  protect consumers from paying for services that

         24  would not qualify for counseling under the

         25  Bankruptcy Law.
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          2                 As drafted, Intro. 290 would require

          3  any individual or business providing credit

          4  counseling services to disclose to potential or

          5  actual customers if they are not an approved credit

          6  counselor.  Approved credit counselors are those

          7  listed under the directory of authorized non- profit

          8  budget and credit counseling services promulgated

          9  pursuant to the Bankruptcy and Abuse Prevention and

         10  Consumer Protection Act of 2005.  To alert consumers

         11  of those found in violation of the subchapter, the

         12  bill requires the Department to post on its website

         13  the name of persons found in violation within the

         14  previous twelve months.

         15                 We commend the Council for seeking to

         16  protect those seeking credit counseling due to

         17  financial distress.  The department, however, would

         18  like to offer the following suggestions to allow the

         19  legislation to fully achieve its goals.

         20                 The first suggestion would be to

         21  amend the bill's definition of the term credit

         22  counseling service.  The department feels the

         23  definition as written, "financial guidance, debt

         24  management assistance and consumer credit

         25  counseling" offer too broad a scope to serve the
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          2  intention of the bill.  The aforementioned

          3  definition covers a wide range of financial

          4  planners, stock brokers, and estate counselors that

          5  would inevitably fall under one or more of the

          6  activities listed in the definition.  Since anyone

          7  providing said services is required to disclose

          8  their status as an unapproved credit counselor,

          9  several companies not in business of providing

         10  bankruptcy counseling services would be required to

         11  disclose their unapproved status to their customers.

         12    Requiring such businesses to prominently make such

         13  negative disclosures would be burdensome on the

         14  desired image as a credible financial institution

         15  when they were not in the market to provide such

         16  services to begin with.

         17                 Accordingly, we suggest the

         18  definition of who would be required to make the

         19  necessary disclosure be drawn much more narrowly so

         20  it catches only the predators seeking to take

         21  advantage of financial distressed consumers.

         22                 Our second suggestion deals with the

         23  language detailing the specific manner in which

         24  notice and disclosure is to be made.  Instead of

         25  listing the font size and spacing of the disclosure,
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          2  we propose the department be authorized to adopt

          3  such requirements by rule.  Having said that, the

          4  Administration supports enacting disclosure

          5  requirements to warn consumers to avoid businesses

          6  that target those seeking federally approved

          7  counseling services required for filing bankruptcy.

          8  We would be pleased to work with the Council to

          9  narrowly target who would be required to make the

         10  proposed disclosures.

         11                 Thank you.  I'll be glad to take

         12  questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         14  Council Member Gennaro, I'll let you start.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you for

         16  your review of the bill and for your observations on

         17  behalf of the department. With regard to your first

         18  recommendation, narrowing the definition of who

         19  would be captured under the bill.  Certainly, it is

         20  not our intent to either bring people into the net,

         21  who would not be providing these services.  Again,

         22  without making a commitment it seems the general

         23  thrust of your first observation sounds reasonable,

         24  something we would like to work with you on.

         25                 The second item is, you know the
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          2  department is looking for, as I take it, moral

          3  attitude in a rule- making, rather than having so

          4  much detail to be actually be put into the bill

          5  itself.  You know, all agencies are looking for

          6  latitude in rule making, so it's not surprising that

          7  you would ask for that.  We that said, would it be

          8  fair for me to surmise that with a little

          9  consideration on the two considerations that you put

         10  forward that the department would support this bill?

         11                 MR. EILER: Oh yes, clearly we support

         12  it.  The concerns that you have about this are very

         13  well founded and we really do want to get at the

         14  people who are pretending to be offering this

         15  service, charging for it and then it wouldn't

         16  qualify.  So we definitely want to distinguish those

         17  qualified and those who don't, so that consumers are

         18  alerted to that.  Again, we just want to narrow it

         19  to focus on the people who we really want to catch,

         20  rather than those who have nothing to do with the

         21  subject.

         22                 And the rule making is just that

         23  generally speaking almost invariably for these kind

         24  of findings, the departments, the content, the

         25  method and all the rest of that stuff in almost all
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          2  cases, this is a subject to rule- making.  This is

          3  just making it consistent with everything else the

          4  department does in this area.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.  Well,

          6  I certainly thank you for that qualified support of

          7  this.  I think this is a very well intentioned bill.

          8    Of course I think it's a very well intentioned

          9  bill, I wrote it.  So, let not to belabor it, but

         10  could you just give us some insight into the

         11  department's experiences with regard to New York

         12  City residents who are getting pulled into these

         13  schemes, whatever it is, this phenomenon which the

         14  department has been following, has some sense of,

         15  and could you just speak about that a little bit?

         16                 MR. EILER: Well, this is a relatively

         17  new phenomenon because a requirement for obtaining

         18  credit counseling has just been created under the

         19  Bankruptcy Law.  So we really don't have a lot of

         20  experience in terms of consumers talking about

         21  whether or not or how they have been snared by

         22  people providing this service.  The lists are just

         23  being made up and so this is a fertile new field.

         24                 What is the other aspect of the

         25  situation is the so called credit counseling debt
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          2  management services where the debt management

          3  company -- Let me qualify that to be a little bit

          4  careful here.  Under New York Law, debt management,

          5  as a profit making operation is unlawful.  You can't

          6  engage in debt management except as a non- profit

          7  entity and then subject to licensing by the Banking

          8  Department.  So, it's only such entities that can

          9  engage in the business of trying to work with

         10  consumers to consolidate debts and work out a debt

         11  repayment plan, so forth and so on, or some problems

         12  in that area. But, because it's licensed by the

         13  Banking Department we really don't get a lot of

         14  complaints about this subject, because it's really

         15  done by them.

         16                 There is some question about

         17  unlicensed or out- of state companies that are

         18  operating in this area, but that is a different

         19  matter.  The problem of debt management companies,

         20  taking unfair -- because these companies take the

         21  consumer's money.  They are supposed to distribute

         22  it to creditors and the experience when this

         23  practice was outlawed in New York about 50 years

         24  ago, because these companies would just take the

         25  money and leave consumers in worse shape than they
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          2  were before and that's why it was prohibited.

          3  That's a different kind of thing than what the

          4  Bankruptcy Law contemplates, which merely counseling

          5  people about dealing with debt without technically

          6  speaking of doing anything about the debt. So that

          7  is a very different kind of animal, that a person in

          8  financial distress, just prior to the step of filing

          9  bankruptcy, now he is supposed to be counseled about

         10  money- management, when he is in the verge of

         11  declaring bankruptcy, is kind of putting the horse

         12  after the cart.

         13                 So, again, we have not had a lot of

         14  complaints. What we more deal with is collection

         15  practices.  We just had a Hearing on that and we are

         16  working developing issues on dealing with credit

         17  collection practices, which is a big problem.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you.  I

         19  just have one more quick question, which in the

         20  interest of time and other bills that are on the

         21  agenda today.  With regard to your first issue with

         22  the bill on your narrowing the scope of people that

         23  would fall under the bill's requirement.  Do you

         24  have a clear sense of these specific types

         25  businesses that you would wish to exclude from the
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          2  bill?  If you have a clear sense of that.

          3                 MR. EILER: Rather than exclude, we

          4  might want to more target who has to make disclosure

          5  and do it in that manner. Exactly how we do it,

          6  that's something you certainly want to discuss and

          7  tailor it so we get who we are after.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  My question

          9  is, do you have a clear sense of entities that you

         10  believe ought to be subject to this bill?  I mean

         11  you stated that you believe it's too broad.

         12                 MR. EILER:  Well, the people who

         13  actually set out or propose or advertise or tell

         14  people that we're in the business of credit

         15  counseling, in a sense of providing services calling

         16  for the Bankruptcy Law.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay.

         18                 MR. EILER: Anyone who sets themselves

         19  out is doing this.  They should definitely be

         20  captured by the Bill.  And they should definitely be

         21  called upon to make a disclosure, if they don't

         22  qualify.  Those are the people, very narrowly, very

         23  clearly, precisely target. What we don't want to do,

         24  the thrust of my comments is that there is a lot, a

         25  large number of types businesses and financial
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          2  services, financial planners, estate planners,

          3  insurance agents actually, who all do that kind of

          4  financial counseling, so to speak, who would be

          5  captured in the net here and have to make those

          6  disclosures and they really don't do any of the

          7  counseling that we are trying to address.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Fair enough.

          9  Thank you sir and than you, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  As

         11  you said Mr. Eiler, this is a relatively new

         12  phenomenon in the way this is dealt with because the

         13  Federal Regulations have changed.  But you already

         14  have under your purview the ability to look at

         15  credit counseling agencies?

         16                 MR. EILER: Well, only in the sense,

         17  credit counseling agencies, that if they fall within

         18  the purview of Consumer Protection Law that they are

         19  engaging in deceptive practices, unconscionable

         20  practices.  Certainly as any other business they

         21  would come under that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  They already

         23  register with DCA, those people who are doing it

         24  like Household Finance.

         25                 MR. EILER: Oh, no, no, no.  They
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          2  would not have to be registered, anyone who does

          3  that management.  Credit counseling, what it means

          4  is that management non- profit organizations, are

          5  the only ones who are allowed to do that.  They have

          6  to be licensed by the Department of Banking, not us.

          7    We do not have direct regulatory authority over

          8  them.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  So, do you

         10  believe that DCA has the ability to develop a list

         11  of those groups so that we can look at how we can

         12  best bring them under some regulatory authority.

         13                 MR. EILER: We could certainly try to

         14  see, you know, what we could find out about what

         15  practices of what companies are involved in this to

         16  get a better handle on who we're talking about.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.

         18                 MR. EILER: We would have to look at

         19  advertising and whoever is providing it, yes, we

         20  could certainly try to do that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: But on the other

         22  hand, DCA could also do a major awareness campaign

         23  to consumers about what to look out for.

         24                 MR. EILER: Oh, I mean education

         25  absolutely.

                                                            21

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'd like to do

          3  like the EICC, like, you know, there is a toll

          4  regulations and other things where we could put out

          5  a major consumer information campaign, maybe working

          6  with some of the legitimate groups that have already

          7  shown themselves to truly have the consumer in mind.

          8                 MR. EILER:  We are always on the

          9  lookout for educational programs that would be

         10  helpful and target.  So, sure that would be

         11  something that we could look at.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  I agree

         13  with you on your two suggestions about amending the

         14  definition and checking to make sure that the

         15  disclosure is narrowly defined.  But, we also have a

         16  problem with the remortgage industry, in that the

         17  heavy issues of the fact that we have a lot of

         18  people that are dealing with predator lenders with

         19  their mortgages or home contractors that are dealing

         20  with illegal mortgages, disguised as home repair

         21  loans, where they are trapping a lot of people into

         22  paying into a user re rate to get their home

         23  repaired which normally overwhelms their mortgage,

         24  so we need to look at that and narrow it, we need to

         25  be maybe developing a way to put them into another
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          2  category.  I know we could sit down with HPD, they

          3  have been working on predatory lending and it's been

          4  pervasive throughout the City, but no more so than

          5  in my own district, which is one of the highest

          6  areas that have been suffering from this type of

          7  predatory lending.  One of the reasons that I wanted

          8  to make sure that this bill is heard is I was hoping

          9  it could deal with that category as well. So, I look

         10  forward to figuring out how we can make that happen.

         11                 MR. EILER: We would be glad to

         12  discuss that one with you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. Your

         14  website, does it have the ability to put up the

         15  violators for any DCA or any business that has come

         16  up with a DCA violation.  Do you have the ability to

         17  post those on your website at this time?

         18                 MR. EILER: We don't do it right now.

         19  I'm not a technical expert on the website, but I

         20  believe that this kind of information, we post,

         21  given the fact that we have access to home

         22  improvement contracts, that people can check and so

         23  forth.  I mean the capability should be there, that

         24  we would be able to pull such information about such

         25  things on the site.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right.  But,

          3  you do have the ability to do a public announcement

          4  when you catch a violator and send out the notice

          5  that is in the newspaper, such as Ala.  I know you

          6  didn't send out the notices for the raid that they

          7  did on Wednesday, but when they are violated and

          8  break DCA laws, you do make a public announcement

          9  about it.

         10                 MR. EILER:  We haven't and yesterday

         11  the Mayor joined the Commissioner at our office to

         12  make the announcement about tobacco violators.  So,

         13  we certainly do and we have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  We have

         15  been joined by Council Member Oliver Koppell.  We

         16  thank him for coming in this morning.  I think we'll

         17  go onto the next bill before we take testimony from

         18  the public.  Before you start talking about it if we

         19  could hear from the sponsor of Intro. 296- A,

         20  Council Member John Liu, if he's ready to start.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

         22  much Mr. Chairman for calling this Hearing and I

         23  want to thank Andy Eiler, and the Department of

         24  Consumer Affairs and members of the public for

         25  joining us in this Public Hearing this morning.
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          2                 Intro. 296 is a bill that I had put

          3  forth in response to escalating prices at the gas

          4  pump that New Yorkers faced.  The issue here is

          5  although many people protest the seemingly

          6  outrageous increases at the gas pump and in fact

          7  there have been other efforts to regulate the price

          8  of gas in terms of imposing price caps.  The bill

          9  that I have drafted, that I hope that this Committee

         10  and the Council will carefully consider does not

         11  address the problem by way of imposing price caps,

         12  rather it seeks simply to match at a minimal basis

         13  the prices charged by the gas stations to the prices

         14  that the gas stations themselves are paying for the

         15  gas.

         16                 In particular the bill prohibits the

         17  gas stations from increasing prices more than once

         18  per day and that reflects the reality that no gas

         19  station receives a delivery more than once a day.

         20  If the gas stations are not paying an increased

         21  price in the same 24- hour period, it stands to

         22  reason that the gas station does not actually need

         23  in order to stay competitive, to raise their prices

         24  more than once a day as well.  Again, we are looking

         25  to match the supply to the gas station, as well as
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          2  the sales by that gas station.

          3                 I look forward to your testimony Mr.

          4  Eiler, and Mr. Chairman, thank you very much for

          5  calling up this bill for consideration.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you and I

          7  think this is a bill that needs to be heard

          8  expressing this specific time when even this morning

          9  I went, when I was driving home, there was one gas

         10  price and coming back to the Hearing today, later

         11  this morning there was a different gas price at my

         12  favorite gas station.  I could have saved five cents

         13  if I had stopped last night at 2:00 o'clock in the

         14  morning.  But, with that, we will hear from Mr.

         15  Eiler.

         16                 MR. EILER: Thank you Mr. Chair and

         17  your second item on the agenda is an effort to

         18  protect New York City consumers against instances of

         19  price gouging by retain gasoline vendors. This bill

         20  would require that a retail gasoline dealer's

         21  selling price match the price posted on signs at the

         22  premises, and that the posted price remain in effect

         23  for no less than 24 hours.  The bill would also

         24  impose record- keeping requirements to track the

         25  amount and price at which gasoline sales are made at
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          2  a station.

          3                 Although the purpose of this bill is

          4  to protect consumers from unconscionable price

          5  increases by gasoline vendors, the Administration

          6  opposes this specific means of regulation requiring

          7  retail dealers to maintain a posted price for any

          8  designated period.  This requirement would hinder

          9  gasoline retail dealers by locking them into a price

         10  for 24 hours that would prevent them from responding

         11  to varying market conditions that often change with

         12  in a day.

         13                 Such handcuffs could quickly spell

         14  ruin in an upward market, especially to independent

         15  retailers who purchase gasoline from various

         16  wholesale distributors who would not be barred at

         17  all from changing, raising, their prices with each

         18  delivery.  A retailer who changed his price to

         19  reflect the cost of a delivery early in the day

         20  would remain stuck to that price even if a later

         21  delivery that day was substantially more costly.

         22  This dealer would be required to sell the more

         23  costly, later delivered product at the cost of the

         24  previous delivery resulting in a potential loss for

         25  the retailer.
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          2                 While the intent of this bill appears

          3  to protect consumers, the aforementioned

          4  consequences would be damaging to independent

          5  retailers, ultimately eliminating them from the

          6  marketplace.  The Administration views this as an

          7  undo burden on the free market economy and therefore

          8  opposes this portion of the bill.

          9                 By contrast, the proposed record-

         10  keeping requirement making it possible to track the

         11  volume and price at which gasoline is sold could be

         12  useful for enforcing the state law that prohibits

         13  price gouging during emergencies declared by the

         14  Governor. Gasoline stations now increasingly use

         15  computer tracking systems that are linked to the gas

         16  dispensing devices to monitor the volume and price

         17  at which products are sold.  Accordingly, it would

         18  not be intrusive or burdensome to require retailers

         19  to maintain and make such records available for

         20  inspection on the premise where the gasoline is

         21  sold.

         22                 Thank you, and I'll take your

         23  questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Okay, you can go

         25  right into Intro. 304.
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          2                 MR. EILER: Oh, sure.  Intro. 304, the

          3  last item on the agenda, would require every

          4  gasoline retailer to report to the Department at

          5  least twice per week its per gallon retail price by

          6  brand, name or grade.  It would also require every

          7  retailer to post a sign disclosing the availability

          8  of the gasoline selling price database the

          9  Department would be required to maintain.  And

         10  finally, it would require the Department to make a

         11  gasoline price database available to the public on

         12  its website, and to update the database at least

         13  twice a week.

         14                 The Administration opposes the

         15  enactment of these requirements because they mandate

         16  the Department to devote substantial time and

         17  resources to update and maintain a price database

         18  for its website, while delivering only minimal

         19  benefits to a handful of consumers.  As mentioned

         20  earlier, it is the Department's preference to

         21  regulate and enforce the record- keeping

         22  requirements by the retailers.

         23                 Thank you again for this opportunity

         24  to comment on this package of bills and I will be

         25  pleased to answer your questions.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Council Member

          3  Liu, would you like to go first?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Yes, thank you

          5  very much Mr. Chair.  And Mr. Eiler, once again

          6  thank you for your testimony, and I also look

          7  forward to, hopefully we will have substantive

          8  testimony from representatives of the industry.  I

          9  want to thank you for your testimony once again.

         10                 You talk about the Administration

         11  implicitly also wanting to protect consumers from

         12  unconscionable price increases. What would you say

         13  was an unconscionable price increase, Mr. Eiler?

         14                 MR. EILER:  Well, there is a State

         15  law on that defines this.  I don't have it at hand,

         16  but it's an excessive price increase in an emergency

         17  situation.  There is a broad definition in there and

         18  I can't get any closer than that, based on the State

         19  law that is enforced by the Attorney General's

         20  Office.  It's some form of an excessive price

         21  increase that is not warranted by market conditions.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Even so, when

         23  anybody determines that a price increase is

         24  excessive it's still very judgmental, isn't it?

         25                 MR. EILER: Yes.  It is something for
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          2  the court to determine.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: In fact, there

          4  are many things that the Department of Consumer

          5  Affairs, forget the State for a minute, the City

          6  Department of Consumer Affairs, often is required to

          7  use judgement on.

          8                 MR. EILER: Well, within the

          9  parameters of the statutes we are required to

         10  enforce, yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And in this case,

         12  in the case of Intro. 296, that judgement that would

         13  be required is actually very narrowly limited.

         14  Almost to the point where it does not require

         15  judgement on the part of the Consumer Affairs

         16  Department.

         17                 On the one hand you testify that the

         18  Administration views it as an undo burden on the

         19  free market economy?  And in the same testimony,

         20  talk about unconscionable pricing increases.  It

         21  seems to me that there is a bit of inconsistency in

         22  the testimony here.  How can you on the one hand,

         23  not you Mr. Eiler, not you Andy, how can the

         24  Administration say that they don't want an undo

         25  burden on the free market economy and at the same
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          2  time talk about unconscionable price increases?

          3                 MR. EILER: Well, because what you are

          4  talking about is if the retailer is limited, is

          5  restricted from changing the prices, within a 24-

          6  hour period all he wants, there are certainly

          7  marketing conditions that could result in a retailer

          8  having to purchase at different prices during the

          9  day that if hand- cuffed from being able to then

         10  pass on or reflect the changes in the prices that

         11  this bill would impose on them.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  I also found

         13  that part of the testimony interesting to say the

         14  least.  The Department of Consumer Affairs is

         15  already charged with monitoring and regulating, not

         16  necessarily the prices that gas stations charge

         17  currently, but the way in which gas stations post

         18  their prices, as well as regulating the content of

         19  the gasoline as it pertains to the octane level as

         20  indicated on the prices.  So that the Department of

         21  Consumer Affairs already has a fair amount of

         22  experience in imposing some forms of regulation and

         23  monitoring on gas stations in New York City.  Is

         24  that correct?

         25                 MR. EILER:  Oh, absolutely.  We want
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          2  to make absolutely sure that when somebody says you

          3  are getting 87 octane, you are getting 87 octane, or

          4  when you are getting 92 octane, you are getting 92

          5  octane.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: But does the

          7  Consumer Affairs Department, given that there is

          8  already a long history of monitoring and regulating

          9  gas stations in the City of New York, have any idea

         10  how often or how frequent the gas stations receive

         11  deliveries?

         12                 MR. EILER:  Well, that's not

         13  something -- we can track that, there is records

         14  available.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: But, a fair

         16  amount of the testimony that you are providing

         17  today, is predicated on gas stations often getting

         18  deliveries more than once a day.

         19                 Is that pure conjecture or is there a

         20  basis on which the Department of Consumer Affairs

         21  testifies that we will be barring gas stations from

         22  increasing prices more than once a day, when in fact

         23  they implicitly, by your testimony, receive

         24  deliveries more than once a day.

         25                 MR. EILER:  Well, there are high
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          2  volume stations. Low volume stations obviously would

          3  not have, I mean I don't know that.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well, is there

          5  any basis that this testimony, given the long record

          6  of Department of Consumer Affairs regulation of gas

          7  stations in New York City.

          8                 MR. EILER: Yes, there are instances

          9  where there is multiple deliveries to a station.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Per day.

         11                 MR. EILER: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And the

         13  Department of Consumer Affairs has that documented?

         14                 MR. EILER: I mean, that's what I've

         15  heard from inspectors that are present at -- I don't

         16  have any documents.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: This Committee,

         18  well Mr. Chairman, I would ask that the Committee

         19  request that information from the Department of

         20  Consumer Affairs, instances where gas stations have

         21  received deliveries more than once a day.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  I would

         23  agree with that. I would hope that we could get

         24  provided with that information. We have received a

         25  letter from the New York State Petroleum Council,
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          2  Cathy Kennedy, that was supposedly the main thrust

          3  of her argument, but with no proof.  So, I would

          4  like to see some proof of what DCA has as far as

          5  multiple deliveries are concerned.

          6                 But, you do believe that the agency

          7  is the appropriate agency to look into this issue?

          8                 MR. EILER: Which one is that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: The issue of gas

         10  price regulation and the ability to make sure that

         11  gas stations in the industry are monitored to make

         12  sure that there is not gouging in pricing.

         13                 MR. EILER: Well,  we are not really

         14  involved in the price gouging part because the laws

         15  governing the state on unconscionable price

         16  increases or price gouging.  It's a state law that

         17  is expressly subject to enforcement by the Attorney

         18  General's Office.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  The

         20  agency is monitoring our same levels, monitoring the

         21  visual placing of the prices at the station and you

         22  have people that have technical expertise and the

         23  familiarity with the stations, don't you think that

         24  you would have. How big is your inspector staff that

         25  goes out to monitor stations now?
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          2                 MR. EILER:  I think the gas squad has

          3  about four or five people, four or five inspectors.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: For the entire

          5  City?

          6                 MR. EILER: Yes, that are dedicated to

          7  doing gasoline inspections.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.

          9                 MR. EILER: But, we don't monitor the

         10  gasoline prices.  The only thing that we do check is

         11  that the price posted is the price charged, because

         12  that is a matter of deception.  It's a divergence if

         13  you post one price and charge another.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So, that's not

         15  monitoring the prices?

         16                 MR. EILER: That's not monitoring

         17  prices, that's monitoring the accuracy of price

         18  disclosures.  That doesn't say anything about what

         19  price you have to disclose.  You could disclose

         20  whatever price you want.  But, the price you

         21  disclose had better be the one that you charge.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right. Okay, so

         23  semantics.  But if a person is putting up a gas

         24  price of four dollars a gallon on their sign and

         25  they are charging four- fifty at the pump, --
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          2                 MR. EILER: That's a problem.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: -- Right, but

          4  that's a violation that you picked up now.

          5                 MR. EILER: Absolutely.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: So, while you're

          7  not necessarily dictating the price, you are

          8  guaranteeing that the price that's posted is the

          9  price charged.

         10                 MR. EILER: Absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  And you

         12  are guaranteeing that the octane level is what it

         13  should be for whatever octane level that the

         14  customer is purchasing.

         15                 MR. EILER: Yes.  I hate to say

         16  guarantee, because we can't guarantee it, but we

         17  monitor to make sure that's what happens.  I mean,

         18  you know, but that's exactly what our purpose is.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  In your

         20  testimony you are saying that most stations record-

         21  keeping is computer based and so it would be very

         22  easy for you to get these stations to send you their

         23  computer print- out or computer file on a regular

         24  basis as to what they've charged for a week, for a

         25  day, for an hour actually, now that it's a
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          2  computerized form, their price per gallon and what

          3  those prices would be.  Not to say that we set the

          4  rates that dictate the prices but just to have a

          5  historical breakdown on what station X has charged

          6  for gas at a particular day or particular hour

          7  maybe.

          8                 MR. EILER: Well, the transmissions a

          9  day is a different question from maintaining it at

         10  the station and the kind of record- keeping systems

         11  that are possible with the computer connector- link

         12  systems that they have at the station.  I have gone

         13  to one that I see that you could just punch a button

         14  and you get the price, the number of gallons, at the

         15  price at which they are sold.  That information is

         16  readily available.  Transmitting it to the

         17  department in a form, that's an entire different

         18  kind of a question.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Well, are you

         20  saying that the department has to wrap up the

         21  resources in order to input all of this information?

         22                 MR. EILER: Well, we have to, if you

         23  are going to do a data base of information about

         24  prices, then that information that we gather

         25  individually, one at a time, from each retailer
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          2  would have to be put into some kind of a data base that

          3  would have to be entered, then it would have to be

          4  prepared, it would have to be put on a website,

          5  that's a labor intensive proposition.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm not quite

          7  going into the website issue, I'm just going into

          8  the ability to monitor price changes per se. Since

          9  you say in your testimony that it would not be

         10  intrusive or burdensome to require retailers to

         11  maintain and make those records available for

         12  inspection on the premises. I think it would also,

         13  with the advent of technology, you could do that

         14  remotely, as opposed to having to go to the premises

         15  to see what their prices are, we could do that

         16  remotely if they are required to remotely send that

         17  information to you and through your MIS system

         18  develop a comprehensive oversight on making sure

         19  that no one is doing that gouging.  You can do that

         20  in- house with technology, if there is a requirement

         21  that they send that to you electronically. That

         22  would save --

         23                 MR. EILER: Well, we can certainly

         24  discuss it, but that's a totally different topic in

         25  terms of matter and method of reporting that
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          2  stations could be required to report.  Because when

          3  I say this technology is developing, that doesn't

          4  mean that every station has it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.

          6                 MR. EILER: You've got 1,600 gasoline

          7  stations in the City of New York.  I don't have a

          8  sense of how many of them, I think it's increasingly

          9  the case, how many of them have these electronic or

         10  computer based systems and reporting them and the

         11  method of reporting them and transmitting them

         12  that's a very different topic.  It involves a lot of

         13  technical stuff that I haven't focused on.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  I

         15  appreciate you're having focused on it.  I think

         16  that the possibility is a lot closer than we think,

         17  to get that done.  Whether or not DCA has the staff

         18  and the technological capacity to maintain a

         19  website, I think is easily achievable.  I think that

         20  the ability to have gas stations report

         21  electronically and actually save the City money so

         22  that we don't have to physically do the inspection

         23  is a lot closer than we think.  I think that's

         24  something that we can work towards, especially with

         25  dealing with 296 and also work towards 304.
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          2                 Can you clarify what you mean by

          3  having the substantial time and resources to

          4  maintain a website or are you just saying that, like

          5  you said earlier, you really don't know what your

          6  technical capabilities are at this particular time.

          7                 MR. EILER: Well, in terms of exactly

          8  how to put it on the website, the technical aspects

          9  of that, but to talk about maintaining a data base,

         10  you are talking about 1,600 gasoline stations, which

         11  means thousands of pieces of data of two or three

         12  grades of gasoline, whether or not gasoline or

         13  diesel is involved, that has to be reported, or it

         14  has to be put on a data base. That is a time

         15  intensive, labor intensive proposition.  It would

         16  take one to two days to accomplish each one.

         17                 You know, in a rapidly changing

         18  market, if it takes us one or two days to compile a

         19  data base, by the time it's on the website, it's

         20  out- of- date.  That if you have prices changing

         21  even just once a day, by the time we get the data

         22  together and put it on the website, it's already

         23  out- of- date, in a fast changing market.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.

         25                 MR. EILER: In a stable market, you
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          2  know then the prices remain relatively the same and

          3  people can gauge what the prices are based on just

          4  observation where they generally buy gas, when they

          5  drive around, they can see what the differences and

          6  fluctuations are.  So in a stable market it's not

          7  likely to be terribly useful and in a very volatile

          8  market it's likely to be out- of- date.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: But if you have

         10  automatic reporting, even if someone highlights it

         11  as a problem, you could check back from a week ago

         12  and see.   I don't think we'll ever in the next year

         13  or two, be able to automatically send out a force

         14  that day to check on a claim but if you have

         15  automatic reporting into a data base that is

         16  compiling the information sequentially as it comes

         17  in, your people can go back and check on it in any

         18  24- hour period and see if there was an illegal

         19  increase or abusive use of their authority by

         20  increasing it more than thirty cents within a

         21  particular period.  Even if you had to go back, not

         22  within that particular time frame or that 24- hour

         23  cycle, but because their complaint comes in from a

         24  consumer, their complaint is recorded by DCA and

         25  then DCA could go back and check their records and
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          2  then look because I think it could be done in real

          3  time, the ability of doing this technological

          4  capacity to develop a data base.  I don't think it

          5  requires as many man hours any more than it use to.

          6  If the data base is written properly it will be done

          7  automatically upon reception of the information from

          8  the gas station, in this particular case, but I

          9  think we both need to work to.  I am not a data base

         10  expert yet either but, as some of these companies

         11  are developing more sophisticated data bases as

         12  information is received and aggregated almost

         13  instantaneously.

         14                 Council Member Liu has another

         15  question.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LlU: Thank you very

         17  much Mr. Chairman.  I guess it's more of a brief

         18  comment. I just want to say that as you know Mr.

         19  Eiler, I have a very high regard for the Department

         20  of Consumer Affairs.  In these last few years, the

         21  department, as relatively small as it may be has

         22  proven itself to be extremely agile and adaptive and

         23  I have every confidence that your department will be

         24  able to keep up with the free market that you so

         25  cherish, because in fact the free market based on

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  the numerous web sites out there that continuously

          3  monitor gas prices at hundreds of stations in the

          4  New York City area, as well as other parts of the

          5  country.  They are already able to keep these data

          6  bases alive and continuously updated and I think if

          7  so many private web sites with very little resources

          8  can do it, then a City agency, also with their

          9  little resources, but very smart, can do it as well.

         10    It's not a huge amount of data, even 1,600

         11  stations, two, three, four perhaps even five

         12  different prices for all the different grades that

         13  there are.  It's not a whole lot of data actually,

         14  by today's standards.  So, I think I have expressed

         15  my confidence in your agency being able to track the

         16  relatively small amount of data that by today's

         17  standards that would be required to make sure that

         18  the gas stations are in fact complying with what I

         19  hope will be the law.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  I want to second

         21  that, I don't think it requires a response from you

         22  Mr. Eiler.  I have every confidence that you and

         23  Commissioner Mintz working could do it, could

         24  develop the necessary technology to actually make

         25  the agency's life easier by creating, I don't know
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          2  what the technical term is, maybe a reactional data

          3  base that could automatically compile that

          4  information.  You and I are not computer experts, I

          5  don't think you are a computer expert, I know you

          6  are an expert regarding the DCA and we do value your

          7  advice and do look for your help on information and

          8  you have been extremely adept and agile in making

          9  the agency a very responsive to activate in

         10  protecting consumers.  I think we can look forward

         11  with the advent of technology and the advent of the

         12  blogs that are almost instantaneous.  Other data

         13  bases that I know of automatically respond to

         14  inquiries, and in that we could probably increase

         15  the ability to the department to do that type of

         16  instantaneous record keeping and then deal with the

         17  advocacy part at an easier rate. It's something I

         18  think we can look into.

         19                 Council Member has another comment?

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you Mr.

         21  Chairman, and thank you for indulging me.  I have

         22  one final question for the Department of Consumer

         23  Affairs.  You spoke earlier of the free market and

         24  unconscionable price increases.  Currently, the

         25  Department of Consumer Affairs already has a

                                                            45

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  responsibility to prevent unconscionable price

          3  increases in other consumer product areas, isn't

          4  there?

          5                 MR. EILER:  No. Currently the

          6  Consumer Protection Law provides that the department

          7  can make rules regarding the unconscionable

          8  practices and the department can only proceed under

          9  the unconscionable provisions that --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Specifically I'm

         11  talking about, not just practices, but price

         12  increases.  For example in the time of the year

         13  surrounding Passover, are there any additional

         14  measures that the Department of Consumer Affairs

         15  takes to make sure that there are no unconscionable

         16  price increases?

         17                 MR. EILER: Well, we don't have any

         18  specific law that we could enforce with regards to

         19  prices.

         20            COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: But how does the

         21  Department of Consumer Affairs traditionally take an

         22  action around the time of Passover?

         23                 MR. EILER: Well, the department has,

         24  not recent, but basically it has asked consumers if

         25  they find what they believe to be unconscionable
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          2  prices, that is to notify us.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And what does the

          4  department do?

          5                 MR. EILER: Well, we can check into it

          6  to see what -- But, frankly, with respect to

          7  unconscionable price increases, the only applicable

          8  provision is a rule that we have with respect to

          9  emergencies, there is a shortage based, that there

         10  is a declaration of a shortage that occurs because

         11  of impaired supplies into the City of specific

         12  products.  And if there is an unconscionable price

         13  increases under those circumstances, that is

         14  something that becomes actionable under the Consumer

         15  Protection Law.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Well, it's not

         17  just a question of interrupted supply, it's also a

         18  question of a sharp peak in demand.  Hence, the

         19  historic actions of the Department of Consumer

         20  Affairs around the time of Passover.  In fact, the

         21  previous Commissioner,  Commissioner Dykstra had

         22  testified before this Committee about two or three

         23  years ago that during the time of Passover the

         24  Consumer Affairs Department was being particularly

         25  vigilant against price gouging practices in
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          2  supermarkets.  And so the Department of Consumer

          3  Affairs already not only has an expertise in

          4  regulating prices at the gas pump, but the

          5  Department of Consumer Affairs has to also set

          6  precedent in determining, making very subjective

          7  judgement of whether price gouging, or in your terms

          8  unconscionable price increases is taking place.

          9                 And so I would ask that you take this

         10  feedback back to your department and Administration

         11  and let's work together on a solution that will

         12  benefit all New Yorkers.  Again, in the case of gas

         13  prices, there is no problem when a period of

         14  stability is at hand.  It's only when there is an

         15  interrupted supply, coupled with an increase in the

         16  demand. For example, summer vacations, long

         17  weekends, Labor Day weekend, as we saw in the

         18  aftermath of Katrina last year, and so these

         19  combination of factors do create an atmosphere, a

         20  situation in which price gouging becomes a condition

         21  that becomes ripe for price gouging.  And, that is

         22  what we need to guard against.  The Department of

         23  Consumer Affairs has every capability and has

         24  already done so in other instances in the past and I

         25  would ask that the Department of Consumer Affairs
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          2  carefully consider what can be done and not simply

          3  devolve to the argument of, well we don't want to

          4  interfere with the free market, when in fact price

          5  gouging is in the pure theory of free market,

          6  perfectly allowed and reasonable, and yet we call it

          7  price gouging because just from a fairness point of

          8  view we don't think that as a government we should

          9  allow the price gouging to occur, even though it is

         10  a natural occurrence in the free market.  Thank you

         11  very much Mr. Chair and thank you Commissioner.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Commissioner, I

         13  want to thank you for being here yesterday and

         14  today.  Did you want to speak to that last

         15  particular issue or we'll move forward.  Thank you.

         16                 I am confidant that this is not as

         17  inachievable as you may think it is.  I think

         18  actually if it was done correctly with the help of

         19  DoITT and some other smart people, it would actually

         20  make it easier for the inspectors that go out now to

         21  do a lot of things remotely.  So I look forward to

         22  working with you on it.

         23                 MR. EILER: Well, we are always

         24  looking for ways to deal with issues.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Enjoy
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          2  your holiday.

          3                 MR. EILER: All right.  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  With that, we

          5  are going to go back to 290, sorry to swing the

          6  pendulum back and forth, but it's that kind of day

          7  and I know Council Member Koppell wanted to speak on

          8  290, but he stepped out of the room.  But we will

          9  have Ms. Martha Keys come forward and testify at

         10  this point, and Mr. Joel Greenberg.  Are they both

         11  still in the room?

         12                 Mr. Greenberg is representing the

         13  Association of Independent Consumer Credit

         14  Counseling Agencies.  Ms. Keys is representing

         15  Supreme Choice Housing Realty and they will be

         16  speaking on Intro. 290.  Ladies first, if you don't

         17  mind. Whenever you are ready.  Turn the mic. Light

         18  off in order for it to work. It is counter-

         19  intuitive, it's a City Council thing.

         20                 MS. KEYS: Thank you Mr. Chairman and

         21  your Committee for Consumer Affairs for holding

         22  these Hearings on Local Law No. 290.  Also, I wish

         23  to thank Council Member James Gennaro and other

         24  Council Members who have bought this initiative to

         25  the Committee. My name is Martha Keys.  I am a
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          2  broker and owner of a real estate company in Queens,

          3  New York.  Our focus is on the homeowner who is in

          4  foreclosure.  We feel it is very important for the

          5  homeowner to have a clear understanding of their

          6  rights as a consumer and owner.  We offer home

          7  owners free phone or in- home consultation to review

          8  their situation and give them an honest evaluation

          9  as to what options they may take.

         10                 Unfortunately, many of the homeowners

         11  we speak to have been "scammed" by so called

         12  professionals and there is no other recourse other

         13  than filing bankruptcy.  That process either leads

         14  them into another scam mortgage or eventually the

         15  foreclosure auction.  In Queens, every Friday at

         16  11:00 a.m. is the end result of a homeowner's

         17  downhill slide with the loss of the property.

         18                 There are many predatory lenders,

         19  investors, real estate agents and lawyers who have a

         20  vested interest in gaining the property.  The

         21  homeowner has little or no resources to understand

         22  and handle the situation.  Every person who he/she

         23  has dealt with is out to get their percentage of

         24  money from them.  The homeowner needs protection as

         25  a consumer to enable them to take the right course
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          2  of action.

          3                 Unfortunately, we are not talking

          4  about a small amount of homeowners who are in

          5  difficulty.  In the borough of Queens alone, at any

          6  given time there are over 30,000 homeowners in

          7  foreclosure.  This represents 30,000 people who have

          8  suffered job loss, medical expenses, death of a

          9  loved one, separation or divorce.

         10                 Not only is there an individual scam,

         11  but there is a significant amount of money at stake.

         12    In Queens, if you estimate on a conservative basis

         13  that the value of each property is approximately

         14  $300 thousand, multiply that times the number of

         15  30,000 homeowners and you have a figure of nine

         16  billion dollars. It's an astonishing number.

         17                 By all reports, this situation will

         18  only increase. In New York City alone, the number of

         19  foreclosures went up eight percent in the metro area

         20  for the month of March and it is expected with the

         21  current economic climate that it will continue.

         22                 The homeowner is assaulted by

         23  advertisements on television to "refinance," "no

         24  money down," "don't worry, we will give you a loan

         25  if you are not working," "we can change the credit
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          2  scores," pay stubs" and the list goes on.  Every

          3  conceivable statement is made to get the equity away

          4  from the homeowner.  Other people end up with the

          5  equity and not the homeowner.

          6                 When the homeowner has to file

          7  Chapter 13, it is imperative that they receive

          8  counseling from an "approved credit counselor."

          9  Mandating disclosure of an approved credit counselor

         10  by law is extremely important.  In real estate

         11  transactions, New York State mandates that the agent

         12  disclose to the buyer and seller his/her

         13  relationship.  There is a written document that

         14  parties sign.  So also in Credit counseling,

         15  disclosure is important. Having this disclosure in

         16  public would help to put an end to credit and

         17  mortgage people counseling who have a vested

         18  interest in the property.

         19                 It has been brought up that putting

         20  such a law in place would be costly.  How can cost

         21  be a measure of compliance when we are required to

         22  be in compliance with the Federal Bankruptcy laws?

         23  Why should you have a lower standard?  As in any

         24  profession, it is costly to be a teacher,

         25  psychologist, lawyer or doctor.  But that doesn't
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          2  mean that you don't use their services. So cost is

          3  not an issue if you want to be in compliance.

          4                 For these reasons I urge the Consumer

          5  Affairs Committee to move No. 290 forward out of

          6  Committee for approval to the City Council.  Thank

          7  you again for the privilege of speaking to you.  I

          8  am open for any questions.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         10  Ms. Keys, thank you for your statement.  I just

         11  appreciate all of the advice and counsel you have

         12  given me regarding the preparation of Intro. 290.

         13  And we do have questions for you.  But, what we will

         14  do is, we will take the statement of the other

         15  gentlemen on the panel and then question you and

         16  make comments jointly.

         17                 Sir, please state your name and

         18  commence with your testimony.

         19                 MR. GREENBERG: Good morning.  My name

         20  is Joel Greenberg and I am here representing the

         21  Association of Independent Consumer Credit

         22  Counseling Agencies, also known as AICCCA.  I am

         23  also President of Garden State Consumer Credit

         24  Counseling, which is a licensed New York State

         25  Budget Planner.  In New York State credit counseling
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          2  is considered budget planning.

          3                 AICCCA members provide counselling,

          4  budgeting and financial education to more than two

          5  million consumers each year. AICCCA was established

          6  in 1993 and its members are required to adhere to

          7  the strictest standards and best practices in the

          8  industry.  Twenty- eight percent of the licensed New

          9  York state Budget Planners are members of the

         10  AICCCA.

         11                 Our association certainly supports

         12  the underlying consumer protections in this proposed

         13  law, but we are concerned about the application to

         14  any credit counseling agency that is not approved by

         15  the Executive Office of U.S. Trustees, EOUST to

         16  provide pre- filing bankruptcy counseling.

         17                 More specifically, we are concerned

         18  that a New York State licensed Budget Planner, would

         19  be required to provide notices and disclosures that

         20  would surely cast a dark shadow on these entities

         21  and discourage consumers from utilizing their

         22  services merely because they have not also been

         23  approved by the EOUST.

         24                 Some agencies have sought not to

         25  provide the bankruptcy counseling, and as a result
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          2  have not applied for EOUST approval due to

          3  insufficient resources to comply with the

          4  requirements.  These requirements include additional

          5  bonding costs, additional insurance costs and

          6  additional operational costs for counselors and

          7  facilities that are not adequately subsidized

          8  through fees.

          9                 A New York State licensed Budget

         10  Planner is under the scrutiny of the New York State

         11  Banking Department, requiring recurring on- site

         12  examinations by Banking Department auditors.      Additionally

         13  , these organizations are all tax exempt non- profit

         14  agencies that are under the scrutiny of the Internal

         15  Revenue Service.  The IRS is currently auditing 10

         16  percent of the entire industry and has plans to

         17  expand the audits to a much greater portion of the

         18  industry.  Revocation of their tax- exempt status

         19  would surely result in the corresponding loss of

         20  their Budget Planner's license.

         21                 The AICCCA feels an exemption from

         22  these notification and disclosure requirements

         23  should be provided to licensed New York State Budget

         24  Planners.

         25                 Thank you for the opportunity to
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          2  appear before you and I welcome any questions.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you Mr.

          4  Greenberg. Let me first start with Ms. Keys.

          5                 When we heard testimony from

          6  Department of Consumer Affairs, they seem to, again,

          7  I don't want to speak for them, but they indicated

          8  their conditional approval or support of the bill,

          9  with the proviso that we narrow the scope of

         10  entities that would be subject to the bill and also

         11  give them a little more latitude rule making with

         12  regard to the actual display of the signs and the

         13  verbiage and all that.  What is your perspective on

         14  their position of the bill, you know, that want

         15  qualified support with those changes?

         16                 MS. KEYS: Right.  I think they raised

         17  the question about the definition of credit

         18  counseling; however, it would be my recommendation

         19  to stay with language that's in the Federal

         20  Bankruptcy Code so that we are in compliance with

         21  that.  I would say, also as a recourse, that this

         22  does not include estate planners, mortgage brokers,

         23  et cetera and have that as a definition.  But, I

         24  would strongly urge that we stay with that phrase of

         25  credit counseling.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  I am just a

          3  little confused, I think what he was trying to get

          4  at is people that are not in the business of

          5  providing bankruptcy counseling and pretend to be in

          6  that business, they are seeking to help people with

          7  their investments and that kind of thing, you

          8  shouldn't be included under the bill.  Do you agree

          9  with that?

         10                 MS. KEYS: Yes, I do agree with that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay.  So, it

         12  seems that you are in some agreement with the

         13  Department of Consumer Affairs, but I am just a

         14  little confused about this definitional thing.

         15  Could you explain that for me again?

         16                 MS. KEYS:  Well, I feel that we

         17  should stay with the term credit counseling but as

         18  part of the definition say that this does not

         19  include --

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Oh, I see.

         21                 MS. KEYS: -- Estate planners,

         22  mortgage brokers.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay.  Just

         24  to make it clear that so the line so to speak would

         25  be -- and by drawing the line there you wouldn't
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          2  necessarily exclude those people who are in

          3  investments and this kind of thing.  But any time we

          4  are talking about credit counseling, almost by

          5  definition you are talking about people who are

          6  having money problems, death problems, this kind of

          7  thing, versus the other kind of money problems where

          8  you have a lot of money and you have to figure out

          9  where to invest it.

         10                 MS. KEYS:  This is not the population

         11  we are talking about.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: That's a good

         13  problem.  And so, it would be fair to say that you

         14  were in some level of agreement with the Department

         15  of Consumer Affairs.

         16                 MS. KEYS: Yes. May I make a comment

         17  about that, about the Chairman's statement

         18  concerning public information --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I was just

         20  going to make my way back to my chair because

         21  Chairman Comrie is back, thank you, but we are going

         22  to continue this line of colloquy.  I'm just going

         23  to change seats.

         24                 MS. KEYS: Yes.  I strongly recommend

         25  Mr. Chairman, your implementation of your comments
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          2  concerning public information. I think we had a

          3  strong example of that this last fall when the

          4  bankruptcy laws changed on October 17th and it did

          5  not take long on the street for the word to get out

          6  concerning all the aspects about filing.  So, it's

          7  with a strong public information campaign with ads

          8  on subways, et cetera maybe employing a rapper to

          9  get out the word concerning credit counseling I

         10  think a number of inventive ways could get out and

         11  it would not take long for homeowners and people to

         12  get this information, that these are safe objective

         13  people to go to.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Well I

         15  certainly share your sentiment and we should find a

         16  way to move forward.  We've got the Department of

         17  Consumer Affairs that is in agreement with us, with

         18  some changes to the bill and I think the public

         19  education would be a wonderful thing.  We can keep

         20  people from getting scammed.  I was taken with your

         21  presentation of the numbers that are at stake, you

         22  know 30,000 home owners, $9 billion dollars in play,

         23  certainly we have to do all that we can to make sure

         24  that people who have strived for their whole lives

         25  to get a home and get some equity are not deprived
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          2  of that by virtue of falling into some hard

          3  circumstances and then subsequently being scammed by

          4  unscrupulous people who would seek to siphon off

          5  that equity for themselves.

          6                 I have a question for Mr. Greenberg.

          7  I appreciate your being here today and I would take

          8  it that you would not be in agreement with the

          9  Department of Consumer Affairs in that they -- What

         10  is your position regarding your testimony on this

         11  bill?

         12                 MR. GREENBERG: I would say that I

         13  would agree with their testimony generally.  I think

         14  that it would be better though to include in the law

         15  whatever excluded areas they think should be in

         16  there.  I have seen many state laws that handle it

         17  that way regarding credit counseling.  They will say

         18  this excludes attorneys and so on and so forth.  So

         19  there are ways to handle that within the law itself

         20  as opposed to leaving it open, understanding that

         21  this has got to be handled some other way.

         22                 But I do think that there needs to be

         23  some exclusions and I definitely believe that there

         24  should be an exclusion for licensed budget planners,

         25  because that is what they are licensed to do.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Could you

          3  just repeat that last statement?

          4                 MR. GREENBERG: I do believe there

          5  should be exclusions and I believe it should be

          6  extended to licensed budget planners, whether or not

          7  they are approved by the EOUST.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: So budget

          9  planners you don't think should fall under the group

         10  of people who would be captured by this bill and

         11  have to do this disclosure.

         12                 MR. GREENBERG: That's correct.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay.  What

         14  do you think about that Ms. Keys, budget planners?

         15                 MS. KEYS: My understanding of the

         16  budget planners, if I am correct, budget planners

         17  are working for- profit organizations and

         18  institutions.  Is that correct?

         19                 MR. GREENBERG: In New York State, to

         20  be a licensed budget planner, you must be a non-

         21  profit organization, a tax exemption is required

         22  currently.  Again, they are under the scrutiny of

         23  the State Banking Department.  The State Banking

         24  Department audits every agency that is licensed, in

         25  addition to that they are under the scrutiny of the
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          2  Internal Revenue Service because they are tax exempt

          3  organizations.  So you are dealing with

          4  organizations that are going through a lot of

          5  scrutiny and you are putting them in a position

          6  whereby they are going to look as if they are the

          7  bad guys.  I just don't think it's consistent with

          8  the current New York law.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Now the

         10  individuals and your entities that are perpetrating

         11  this type of fraud on homeowners and trying to scam

         12  them into these loans against their property, which

         13  they can't pay.  These people of course have nothing

         14  to do with your association, is that your testimony?

         15                 MR. GREENBERG: Well, I would prefer

         16  to say they should have nothing to do with being a

         17  licensed New York State Budget Planner.  I would say

         18  yes, they have nothing to do with our association,

         19  we don't permit members to have related party

         20  interests.  But, the New York State licensing would

         21  require that they do not have these types of related

         22  interests also.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes, I guess

         24  what I am wrestling with is these entities which are

         25  scamming people now, and I don't mean to say they
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          2  have any association with you or your association.

          3  They are, I guess by definition also licensed to do

          4  this by someone, right?  So the people who are doing

          5  the bad things that we are trying to prevent with

          6  this bill are currently licensed, whatever they are,

          7  and they are dealing with selling financial products

          8  presumably.  They are selling loans, they are making

          9  loans, so presumably they are already under the so-

         10  called scrutiny of the State Banking Department or

         11  whatever, and that fact notwithstanding they are

         12  still able to prey on people who are in dire

         13  straits.

         14                 And so I guess there is a category of

         15  sort of good guys, like you'd represent and your

         16  budget people and you know who are licensed by the

         17  state and then there are bad guys that are out

         18  there, also licensed by the state doing bad things.

         19  And so it is difficult for me to take much comfort

         20  in the fact these entities are, the good guys and

         21  the bad guys are licensed by the state and thereby

         22  subject to scrutiny and oversight by the State

         23  Banking Department.

         24                 That's not stopping what is going on

         25  here and so this is what we are wrestling with.  We

                                                            64

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  are trying to get some help with this because we

          3  don't want to penalize the good guys. We just want

          4  to go after the bad guys. And so perhaps if you have

          5  specific businesses that you believe should be

          6  excluded, if they are like budget counselors, they

          7  should be excluded from the bill and you shouldn't

          8  have to provide notice.  Is that your testimony?

          9                 MR. GREENBERG: Basically yes.  I

         10  believe that a licensed budget planner who is

         11  licensed to provide just the kind of counseling we

         12  are discussing and is regulated by the State Banking

         13  Department, should have an exception to this onerous

         14  requirement.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes, but the

         16  bad guys are in that category too because they are

         17  also similarly licensed like the good guys, but they

         18  are out there doing bad things.  So, I am just

         19  trying to figure out a way like not to hurt your

         20  members who are like good guys but still protect

         21  against people who are getting scammed and this is

         22  part of what this Hearing is about to figure out how

         23  we do that.  Did you have anything to add Ms. Keys,

         24  on this?

         25                 MS. KEYS: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Because I

          3  don't want to hurt the good guys, but just the fact

          4  that somebody is registered by the Banking

          5  Department, doesn't help me, because all these guys

          6  who are scamming people, are all registered by the

          7  Bank Department so that doesn't get us to the goal

          8  line.  Yes, Ms. Keys.

          9                 MS. KEYS:  I find this category very

         10  interesting. I really feel that we need more

         11  information about these people, who they are, where

         12  they work and so forth because I am out in what you

         13  call the field every day.  I am not in my office,

         14  I'm in my car, I'm on my cell phone, I travel to all

         15  the neighborhoods in Queens. I talk with hundreds of

         16  homeowners either on the phone or in person.  Now, I

         17  have never talked with one who has ever even heard

         18  of a New York State Budget Counselor let alone,

         19  where these people would exist.  And so, I think we

         20  need more information on this group of people.  I'm

         21  happy to look at them and refer people to them if

         22  they so exist.  But, I have never encountered in a

         23  number of years New York State Budget Counselors

         24  working with any of these homeowners.

         25                 Now, my second point on this is if
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          2  they are working on a non- profit basis and do not

          3  have vested interest in institutions such as a

          4  mortgage institution or a bank and so forth, then

          5  why would they have any difficulty with putting up a

          6  sign saying they are an approved credit counselor?

          7  See that doesn't make sense to me.  In other words,

          8  if they are operating free, open, given objective

          9  advice, licensed, under scrutiny and so forth in a

         10  non- profit setting, why wouldn't they put up a sign

         11  saying they are an approved credit counselor.  I

         12  don't see that there is a disparity in that

         13  disclosure.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: But, what we

         15  are talking about with disclosure, we want people to

         16  disclose that they are not one of the federally

         17  approved, you know, bankruptcy counselors and I

         18  think perhaps Mr. Greenberg, one of the challenges

         19  for your industry would be to figure out a way to

         20  have this disclosure, not be some kind of Scarlet

         21  Letter, like we are not this, but we are this.

         22  Maybe that's how this has to work.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: In the interest

         24  of time, I would like to ask one more question.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Fine. So my
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          2  last question is, your members, Mr. Greenberg,

          3  certainly sell financial products, notwithstanding

          4  the fact that they are not- for- profit, right?

          5                 MR. GREENBERG: No, they would not

          6  sell mortgages, they would not sell any kind of

          7  loans.  Their sole function is supposed to be

          8  financial education, counseling and then they have,

          9  if you want to call it a product, they have a

         10  program, whereby they can help the individual pay

         11  off their unsecured debt over a period of four to

         12  five years through agreements with the creditors.

         13  There is no side business or service that's going

         14  on.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: So your

         16  members are not selling financial products?

         17                 MR. GREENBERG: That's correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Just giving

         19  advice.

         20                 MR. GREENBERG: That's correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay.

         22                 MR. GREENBERG: And assisting in what

         23  is called a debt management program, which is a

         24  five- year payout to their unsecured creditors.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.  Thank
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          2  you Mr. Chairman, I'm going to leave it there. But,

          3  certainly it would be my understanding that the most

          4  predatory folks that were going after are indeed

          5  selling some kind of financial product in order to

          6  extract equity from people and so your point is well

          7  made Mr. Greenberg, as is yours Ms. Keys.  And I

          8  thank you both for being here and that would

          9  conclude my questioning.  Thank you Mr. Chairman for

         10  your indulgence.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  I

         12  just want to clarify that Mr. Greenberg is

         13  representing the Independent Consumer Credit

         14  Counseling Agencies and they do not sell or should

         15  not sell secondary loans, or third party loans.

         16  That's why they are being qualified by terms of

         17  EOUST, which is the Federal Government under the new

         18  guidelines, to provide just redemption services or

         19  the ability to bring people out of debt.  I do think

         20  that I agree with Ms. Keys though, I think you need

         21  to advertise more of the entity. I know that it's

         22  brand new and in Federal Regulations are brand new,

         23  but I think that the Association might want to think

         24  about doing a little more branding so that you could

         25  get more consumers to come to you because there is a
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          2  high level of need.

          3                 The issue of doing public

          4  notification and as you heard, I asked the

          5  Department of Consumer Affairs to think about doing

          6  a more public campaign on notification and outreach

          7  to people because the people that are causing the

          8  trouble are not registering.  They are predatory

          9  lenders, they are home contractors, they are third

         10  party banks, they are out- of- state banks, they are

         11  industries that we are not going to be able to

         12  touch, but since you are the "lifeline" and you have

         13  been federally approved to be the lifeline and it is

         14  new, I think it may behoove your group to think

         15  about doing some positive advertising, along with

         16  the City, along with New York City TV and other free

         17  media to get that message out.

         18                 I heard what you said also Ms. Keys,

         19  about notification and public dissemination of the

         20  information to try to prevent people from using

         21  those other routes and I hope that we can work

         22  towards that also.  I'm glad that you came down this

         23  morning and offered your testimony in support of the

         24  bill and clearly as you stated we have 30,000

         25  homeowners in the borough.  One of the reasons I

                                                            70

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  supported this, is my district in Southeast Queens

          3  has a scourge of predatory lending practices.  The

          4  Mayor's Office, to their credit, has identified it

          5  and has allocated some resources through HPD but

          6  those resources are not located in the community.

          7  They are located through the Proroundec (phonetic)

          8  Foundation and East Brooklyn Foundation and I am

          9  trying to get the Mayor's Office to locate them in

         10  Queens so that people don't have to travel to get to

         11  them and that's still a fight because these home

         12  contractors and other unscrupulous people and

         13  secondary lenders are giving people a very difficult

         14  time.

         15                 So, I want to thank you both for

         16  coming.  I hope to talk to you again Mr. Greenberg

         17  before we get to the next level of this bill, just

         18  to get some input on some aspects of the bill.  I

         19  want to thank you for coming all the way from New

         20  Jersey today. Ms. Keys, I've seen your real estate

         21  signs throughout the Queens area and I want to thank

         22  you.

         23                 Now, I just want to note for the

         24  record that Raj Maddiwar had also sent a letter of

         25  support in favor of the proposed legislation by
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          2  Council Member Gennaro.  Raj Maddiwar is an attorney

          3  with his office on 167th Street and Hillside Avenue,

          4  Jamaica.  With that, we are running late.  I

          5  promised everybody we would be out of here by noon.

          6  We need to turn back to the other two bills.  I want

          7  to thank you both for coming and wish you a good

          8  holiday.

          9                 We have two other people to testify

         10  regarding 296- A and 304 and that's Mr. John

         11  Corlett, representing Triple A (AAA) of New York and

         12  Mr. Ralph Bombardiere, representing the Gasoline and

         13  Automotive Service Dealers Association.  If he could

         14  come to the mic.

         15                 I want to apologize to Council Member

         16  Koppell, I think he left.  We will be seeking his

         17  advice and input.  He has a long record dealing with

         18  Consumer Affairs and Consumer Affairs issues back

         19  from when he was in the Assembly and I guess he had

         20  another commitment and couldn't come back to speak

         21  today, but we will be consulting with him on Intro.

         22  290.

         23                 I want to thank Council Member

         24  Gennaro for introducing the bill.

         25                 If we can hear from Mr. Bombardiere.
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          2  If you could just start your testimony.

          3                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Thank you. Good

          4  morning.  My name is Ralph Bombardiere and I am the

          5  Executive Director of the New York State Association

          6  of Service Stations and Repair Shops, Inc. With

          7  offices in Albany.  I also serve as an Executive

          8  Director of the Gasoline and Automotive Service

          9  Dealers Associations.  This organization, formally

         10  known as the Brooklyn Gasoline Dealers Association

         11  was established in 1931.  Most of our members in

         12  this Local Affiliate are located in New York City.

         13                 I am here today to ask that you

         14  reject Intro. 296- A and Intro. 304.  The retail

         15  service station industry is already over burdened

         16  with regulations.  It becomes the victim of

         17  government every time there is a motor fuel crisis.

         18  We are the last rung on the supply ladder and

         19  therefore the easiest target.

         20                 It is almost impossible to do

         21  business in this City. Our organization has an

         22  attorney on staff to handle violations issued by the

         23  City and State.  You almost need to be an attorney

         24  on site to know and comply with all the current laws

         25  and regulations. Adding to this burden will be
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          2  Intro. 296- A and Intro. 304.

          3                 During the shortages of 1974 and

          4  1979, I operated a service station in Brooklyn.

          5  Every State and City Agency was on our back.  We

          6  received violations for infractions that did not

          7  exist. At one point a Federal Regulation forbid a

          8  service station from rising prices but did not

          9  restrict supplier from raising the wholesale prices

         10  to the station.  To more fully explain, if my price

         11  was 69.9 and my supplier raised the price to me to

         12  71.9 I could not pass on the increase to the

         13  motorist.  We had to bus dealers from around the

         14  country to Washington, D.C. Just to permit a pass-

         15  through of a wholesale price increase.

         16                 Recently the New York State Attorney

         17  General claimed there had been a crisis, singled out

         18  fifteen service stations, called them price gougers

         19  and forced, no extorted, fines from these small

         20  businesses.  There was no crisis, no one declared a

         21  crisis and no one in New York ran out of gas because

         22  of Hurricane Katrina. The fines levied by the

         23  Attorney General's office were paid because gasoline

         24  dealers are small businessmen and cannot take the

         25  chance of having to pay the higher fines, which were
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          2  threatened by the strong arm of the Attorney

          3  General's Office.  Another consideration is that the

          4  legal fees could be higher than the fines.  So the

          5  dealers paid, but this does not mean anyone was

          6  guilty.

          7                 In reality what happened was the

          8  Attorney General responded to pressure from

          9  legislators who were being pressured by their

         10  constituents.  Retail prices in the wake of

         11  Hurricane Katrina skyrocketed in the range of

         12  seventy cents to one dollar per gallon. Had a fair

         13  and thorough investigation been done, the Attorney

         14  General would have determined that the wholesale

         15  price the dealers were forced to pay had skyrocketed

         16  without cause.  Those same dealers had no choice but

         17  to increase prices in anticipation of the next price

         18  increase so that they would be able to pay for the

         19  next load of product.  This is known in economic

         20  terms as "replacement cost pricing" and is

         21  considered a justified method of pricing during

         22  times when the market is volatile.

         23                 Should Intro. 296- A become law, it

         24  will prohibit a service station from raising prices

         25  more than once a day.  What other industry is
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          2  government interfering with in this manor? Perhaps

          3  we should be subject to the rules of the Public

          4  Service Commission.  If a dealer receives two loads

          5  in one day, and that does happen, and the second

          6  load is at a higher price, we are not permitted to

          7  make an adjustment, your argument would be, that he

          8  still has the lower price product in the ground

          9  That's not always true. Just yesterday the price of

         10  diesel fuel in the Albany area was raised six cents

         11  a gallon at 2:00 p.m. in the afternoon.  Those

         12  prices usually don't get addressed until 6:00

         13  o'clock.  The reason was, debris is coming down the

         14  Hudson and they are afraid the barges can't get

         15  through.  So the wholesale price went up.  And

         16  that's going to be what's paid the next day.  There

         17  has to be some consideration for limiting the

         18  wholesale pricing, if you want to attack the retail

         19  pricing increases as well.

         20            Intro. 296- A would make replacement cost

         21  pricing a daily occurrence.  Under the law, when a

         22  dealer would set his price for the next 24 hours,

         23  the dealer would have to guess correctly as to how

         24  the wholesale price for all his subsequent

         25  deliveries over the next 24 hours.  Since guessing
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          2  too low will not only cause profit loss and even

          3  debt, as well as more serious problems, a dealer

          4  will have no choice but to guess high.

          5                 A dealer who guesses too low might

          6  choose to close his doors for the day rather than

          7  take a loss which would be exacerbating to the

          8  consumer who would have to go elsewhere and perhaps

          9  find gas lines at bargain gas prices.  Should the

         10  dealer shut down for the day he faces a different

         11  problem from his supplier for not remaining open.

         12                 The next two paragraphs deal with a

         13  law that sunsets. So I'll just exclude them and go

         14  to the next paragraph where it starts.  Consumers

         15  are also hurt as the bill prohibits changing the

         16  price within a 24 hour period if we want to lower

         17  it.            Finally, the consumer will be hurt in

         18  the long run by a hidden unfairness in the bill.

         19  Company operated stations run by major oil companies

         20  will not have to guess at the wholesale price.  All

         21  companies know its own plans before the other

         22  wholesale price before anyone else and therefore

         23  when its priced for the day it will not be guessing,

         24  it will know exactly what it is going to pay, or

         25  charge itself at the wholesale price. We are the

                                                            77

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  last buffer between motorists and the monopolies of

          3  the major oil companies.

          4                 The requirements in Intro. No. 304

          5  are unacceptable as well.  Our signs are large

          6  enough to keep the public informed of the prices.

          7  Placing the additional burden of reporting our

          8  prices is unreasonable.  No other product is treated

          9  in this manner.  For example, grocery retailers are

         10  not required to report their milk prices, whole

         11  milk, two percent milk, one percent milk, skim milk,

         12  et cetera, even though the state has specifically

         13  targeted this item for consumer protection twice a

         14  week.

         15            There are about 1,600 stations, I had

         16  1,400 according to Consumer Affairs, across New York

         17  City.  They will be required to call in gasoline

         18  prices for three grades of gasoline plus possibly

         19  diesel, that's four.  Some of these stations will

         20  need to call in two sets of prices, one for full-

         21  service, one for self- service. There are also

         22  credit card prices, so you may have six prices per

         23  station.  You would have the full- service, the

         24  self- service, and the credit card prices.  So,

         25  there would be more than just three prices.  It
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          2  could be up to twelve prices.  I find it hard to

          3  believe that Consumer Affairs is willing to take on

          4  these new duties without a fee or is one lurking in

          5  the background.  It appears you are trying to kill a

          6  fly with a sledgehammer.

          7                 The record- keeping provision in the

          8  bill is a formula for summonses, fines and the wrath

          9  of over- enthusiastic enforcement officials.  If

         10  government really wants to help the motorist of New

         11  York, why not find out what is causing the higher

         12  prices?  In 2002 the United States Senate produced a

         13  report outlining the problems.  Has any action been

         14  taken on the problems outlined in the report?  I

         15  venture to say few have even taken the time to read

         16  this report, much less initiate its suggestions.

         17                 We are not the bad guys.  Our margins

         18  are not excessive.  I was making ten cents a gallon

         19  in 1963 on Flatbush Avenue.  My dealers now make 15

         20  cents a gallon perhaps, but their credit card fees

         21  are as high as nine and twelve cents a gallon.  We

         22  don't need to be controlled, we need help.  As the

         23  prices rise we lose money.  Why haven't you looked

         24  at credit card fees?  Perhaps take the state's lead

         25  and reduce sales tax.  Instead the City enjoys
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          2  windfall revenues from the percentage based sales

          3  tax on high gas prices and seeks to control the

          4  pricing practices of small service stations.

          5                 One final side effect of these two

          6  laws needs to be mentioned.  Already Manhattan is

          7  notably shorthanded for gasoline stations.  The

          8  cause is a mixture of heavy regulation and high

          9  property values.  Recently four more west side

         10  stations closed their doors to become part of the

         11  Chelsea housing boom.  The additional unnecessary

         12  and constraining regulations will make more owners

         13  think about selling off their business for property

         14  value and leaving Manhattan residents with even

         15  fewer choices at the pump.

         16                 My organization regrets the need to

         17  appear at this Hearing to protect our basic rights.

         18  Their function is to protect the citizens of New

         19  York City and I am one of them.  And may I suggest

         20  that the service station population also deserves

         21  this type of protection.

         22                 I want to thank you for the

         23  opportunity to speak at this Hearing and I hope you

         24  will accept our remarks.  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Now
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          2  we will hear from Mr. Corlett.

          3                 MR. CORLETT: Good afternoon Mr.

          4  Chairman.  My name is John Corlett and I am the

          5  Director of Government Affairs for AAA New York.

          6  Thank you for inviting us to comment on proposed

          7  Intro. No. 296- A and Intro. No. 304.  AAA has more

          8  than 2.4 million members residing in New York State,

          9  many of them in the City of New York.

         10                 After Hurricane Katrina ravaged New

         11  Orleans and the Gulf Coast, New Yorkers paid the

         12  highest prices ever for a gallon of gasoline last

         13  September, an average of $3.37 per gallon.

         14                 As frustrating and unpleasant as that

         15  experience was, the driving public clearly

         16  understood that a dramatic natural disaster had

         17  befallen the southeastern United States.  They

         18  understood that the storm had harmed our energy

         19  infrastructure. And while fuel prices were

         20  exceptionally high, there was a widespread belief

         21  that the situation would be temporary and prices

         22  would come back down.

         23                 Since the beginning of 2006, however,

         24  the national average price of self- service regular

         25  gasoline has jumped from $1.78 per gallon to $2.87
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          2  per gallon; a whopping increase of almost one dollar

          3  per gallon.  Locally, prices in the City of New York

          4  are higher, averaging $3.20 as of yesterday.  With

          5  hurricane season now upon us, and because fuel

          6  prices now seem to be significantly higher with each

          7  passing year, many consumers now believe that

          8  increased gasoline costs have become a permanent

          9  fixture in their lives.

         10                 They are rightly concerned because

         11  this year's price increase will cost a typical

         12  family about $1,100. Per year in gasoline

         13  expenditures, or about $100 more each time their

         14  monthly gasoline statement arrives in the mail. AAA

         15  calculates that number on the assumption that the

         16  average vehicle, according to Federal figures,

         17  consumes 550 gallons of gasoline each year and that

         18  nationally, the average household owns more than two

         19  vehicles.

         20                 An extra one hundred dollars per

         21  month may not sound like much to some people but it

         22  is important to remember that according to research

         23  by the Consumer Federation of America, an estimated

         24  one- half of American families say they always or

         25  frequently live from paycheck to paycheck. With that
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          2  reality in mind, it is easier to understand why

          3  sharp and steady increases in fuel prices are a

          4  significant financial setback for many citizens.

          5                 Before commenting on the proposed

          6  introductions under discussion today, I would like

          7  to point out that to lessen the impact of higher

          8  pump prices, our association was a strong and vocal

          9  advocate for the recently enacted State legislation

         10  capping the State sales tax at 8 cents per gallon,

         11  effectively freezing the State sales tax at the

         12  $2.00 per gallon rate.

         13                 As you know, that legislation,

         14  enacted June 1st also authorized local governments

         15  to cap local sales taxes with gasoline prices

         16  remaining at increased levels for the foreseeable

         17  future, our organization is advocating local

         18  reductions in sales taxes to provide consumers with

         19  greater financial relief.

         20                 Combined Federal and State taxes on

         21  gasoline sold in New York State total 40 cents per

         22  gallon before the addition of sales taxes.  Further,

         23  it is important to note that New York State is one

         24  of the few of states to subject gasoline to State

         25  and local sales taxes at all.  Those taxes can add
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          2  another 20 cents per gallon to the price of

          3  gasoline, depending on the pump price. Consequently,

          4  New York State motorists pay upwards of 60 cents per

          5  gallon in state, local and federal taxes, the

          6  highest combined tax rate in the country.

          7                 Consequently, to provide consumers

          8  with more relief, our organization strongly supports

          9  enactment of Councilman Weprin's proposal to cap

         10  local sales taxes at the $2.00 rate.

         11                 With respect to proposed Intro. No.

         12  296- A, some have questioned whether the provision

         13  to limit posted price changes to once per 24- hour

         14  period could withstand legal challenges based on

         15  Federal pre- emption and commerce clause issues.

         16  However, the committee may want to take note that

         17  earlier this year, the New Jersey Attorney General

         18  reached settlements with oil companies and

         19  independent station operators who were charged with

         20  various infractions including "illegally raising

         21  prices more than once every 24 hours."  I have

         22  attached some background information to my

         23  testimony.

         24                 Regarding the record- keeping

         25  requirements included in Intro. 296- A, in our view
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          2  those requirements could prove useful in pursuing

          3  allegations of price gouging.  It is also worthwhile

          4  to note that the recently enacted State legislation

          5  capping sales taxes gave additional enforcement

          6  responsibility to State taxation Department to

          7  ensure that tax savings is passed along to consumers

          8  at the pump.  Consequently, the record- keeping

          9  requirements included in Intro. 296- A may help

         10  State officials ensure the State sales tax savings

         11  is passed along to consumers.

         12                 Regarding Intro. No. 304, we

         13  generally view any proposal giving consumers better

         14  tools to shop around as a positive step.  However,

         15  the Committee should be aware that some web sites

         16  post current fuel price information on a daily

         17  basis, giving consumers the ability to shop around

         18  their own neighborhoods for the best fuel prices.

         19  Our website, www.aaany.com has a link to one such

         20  web site, www.newyorkgasprices.com.  A similar

         21  service, updated daily is provided by the Oil Price

         22  Information Service. Examples of data published by

         23  those two web sites are attached to my testimony.

         24                 Again, Mr.Chairman, thank you for

         25  inviting us to comment on this important consumer
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          2  issue.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you both

          4  for coming today to the Hearing.  Council Member

          5  Liu, I am sure has some questions.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you very

          7  much Mr. Chairman.  Mr. Corlett, I just wanted to

          8  ask you to clarify the position of AAA on Intros.

          9  296 and 304, are you in support of or in opposition

         10  to.

         11                 MR. CORLETT: No, we certainly are not

         12  in opposition to either one.  Absolutely not.  Our

         13  role is to be a consumer advocate.  As far as the

         14  web site posting requirements, the Oil Price

         15  Information Service has a similar service that they

         16  update daily, as opposed to the bill.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Maybe it's not as

         18  black and white as I would like.  Maybe we can do

         19  this. Does the Association, and let's do 296- A

         20  first for now.  Would you say the Association

         21  strongly favors 296- A, favors somewhat 296- A,

         22  opposes somewhat 296 A, or strongly opposes 296- A?

         23                 MR. CORLETT: No.  We absolutely, we

         24  do not oppose it.  In fact, the record- keeping

         25  requirements I think are a positive step in the
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          2  Consumer Protection direction because of the

          3  recently enacted State law.  I am not an expert in

          4  the record- keeping requirements currently in place.

          5    Maybe Mr. Bombardiere is, but I think that is a

          6  positive step.  As far as the posted price

          7  increases, again I wanted to point out, some have

          8  raised with us whether or not this is permissible

          9  and I guess in our minds that is not an issue

         10  whether or not it's permissible or whether or not

         11  the New Jersey Statute has ever been challenged, I

         12  am not aware.  But, I just thought I would raise

         13  that with the Committee so that you were aware of

         14  it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So the

         16  Association has no position on that particular

         17  aspect, except to technically analyze it.

         18                 MR. CORLETT: Exactly.  We certainly

         19  have no objection, that's certainly not our role.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you.  And

         21  Mr. Bombardiere, I do want to thank you for coming

         22  down to testify on this bill. You mentioned a number

         23  of other areas where consumers are subject to what I

         24  would consider unfair practices.  And in fact, the

         25  City Council has and continues to legislate as well
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          2  as work with the regulatory agencies on protecting

          3  consumers.  So the areas that you have mentioned

          4  already, they are areas that we are already looking

          5  at.  It is not simply the gas stations that we are

          6  looking at.  But what happened last year and what

          7  has continued to happen since, there are many of our

          8  constituents who have called in to complain about

          9  what they consider an unfair practice.

         10                 I just wanted to note and perhaps get

         11  your comment on how you could on the one hand claim

         12  that you're at the bottom rung of this industry and

         13  therefore you are being targeted, while on the other

         14  hand using the practice of replacement cost pricing

         15  as a defense, when most of the consumer products do

         16  not use this method of pricing.

         17                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: I guess 45 years of

         18  experience in this industry, having had a gas

         19  station in Brooklyn in 1963.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  All right.  Let

         21  me clarify my question.

         22                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: I heard your

         23  question.  It's not at our level.  It's the

         24  wholesale price that dictates the retail price.  I

         25  can take you right now to any station you choose and
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          2  I will show you their invoice for today and

          3  yesterday and last week and I will show you that

          4  this station is making the same margin now as they

          5  did weeks ago, but the price on the pump has

          6  increased to 15 cents a gallon.  I will duplicate

          7  that to you as many times as you like.  It's the

          8  wholesale price that dictates the retail price and

          9  there is no competition at wholesale.  We are forced

         10  to pay the price of the product delivered.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Sure. Mr.

         12  Bombardiere, let me make clear, very clear two

         13  points.  The first point is, I would absolutely

         14  agree with you that it is much higher up on the

         15  supply chain, where there appears to be a real

         16  problem.  And in fact that continues to be a focus

         17  of some Members of Congress, although given the

         18  industry's influence, apparent influence down there,

         19  it is not getting as much scrutiny as I personally

         20  would like to see, but that certainly is an issue at

         21  the national level, an issue that several Members of

         22  Congress are looking at intently.  A question of

         23  whether the Administration of this country is

         24  willing to look at it, that's a whole different

         25  question. So, I would agree with you on that point.
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          2                 I would also agree with you that gas

          3  stations in general do not make huge profit margins.

          4    There is a great deal of competition out there and

          5  so the gas stations, they have competitive pressures

          6  as well.  And my bill, and this issue does not seek

          7  in any way to broad brush, characterize all the gas

          8  stations in the City.  The bill though, in my

          9  opinion, is necessary because there are some gas

         10  station operators, perhaps they are isolated and few

         11  and far in between, but there absolutely are gas

         12  station operators who are in my opinion price

         13  gouging and charging consumers in an unfair manner.

         14                 So, let me get to what I think is the

         15  main thrust of your testimony.  You talk about this

         16  replacement cost pricing as the main reason why gas

         17  stations need to be able to increase their prices

         18  incrementally several times a day when the need

         19  arises and yet you just before testified that all

         20  the gas stations generally do is to recover their

         21  costs with a certain margin of profit.  So, I think

         22  that there is inconsistency in those statements.

         23  But, I understand why those inconsistencies are

         24  coming out in your testimony.  Because I do agree

         25  with you that many of the gas stations, probably the
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          2  majority by far of the gas stations in New York

          3  City, they have very high competitive pressures and

          4  therefore they are actually not using the

          5  replacement cost pricing model. But rather, they are

          6  looking to recover their cost and make a certain

          7  profit margin in order to stay in business.  That, I

          8  would agree that would be true for most of the gas

          9  stations.  But, what it doesn't explain are the

         10  numbers of gas stations out there that are

         11  absolutely engaged in price gouging and raising

         12  prices not to recover their costs, not to anticipate

         13  the costs of the next delivery, but simply taking

         14  advantage of a situation where we have severe

         15  disruptions in the gas supply, or purported

         16  disruptions in the gas supply as the big oil

         17  companies would have us believe, combined with a

         18  need for an inelastic demand for the gas.  Those are

         19  situations that make gas price gouging a very real

         20  possibility and a real occurrence and that is what

         21  the intent of Intro. 296- A is meant for.

         22                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Intro. 296 focuses

         23  on the retailer. It could have easily been expanded

         24  to the wholesaler, but it wasn't.  And in that

         25  particularly you would know that the wholesaler
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          2  raised his price six cents a gallon or ten cents a

          3  gallon or back in September sixty cents a gallon in

          4  one day.  No one investigated that sixty cent a

          5  gallon wholesale price increase. My dealers, who

          6  were supplied by that company had to close down

          7  because they would not put that price on the pump.

          8                 If you were to say to me we will

          9  amend the bill to include the wholesale price, I

         10  would go back to my people and I probably would get

         11  you some support for that bill.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: You also

         13  testified that your members do in fact take

         14  deliveries more than once a day.  Is that a common

         15  occurrence?

         16                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: No.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Are you

         18  testifying to that?

         19                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: No. At times it does

         20  happen.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: How often. Would

         22  you say it happens half of the time?

         23                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: No.  No way.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Does it happen

         25  ten percent of the time?
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          2                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Perhaps ten to

          3  fifteen percent. But let me tell you how it happens.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Perhaps ten to

          5  fifteen percent of the time.  That means one out of

          6  every seven times that you get a delivery it

          7  happens?

          8                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Councilman, you are

          9  telling me that most service stations are honest,

         10  there is a small percentage that are gouging and you

         11  are passing a law here to go after that small

         12  percentage.  I'm telling you ten to fifteen percent

         13  of the times we do get more than once in one day and

         14  I'll tell you how that happens.  Sometimes the load

         15  comes in as a partial load.  So we will get a load

         16  in the morning and instead of getting 10,000 gallons

         17  we will get 3,000 gallons.  Then in the afternoon we

         18  get the rest of it.  That happens quite often.  It

         19  depends on the supplier.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: And are they

         21  considered partial loads, so that in other words,

         22  you have already, the gas station has already

         23  ordered the 10,000 gallons and you get three in the

         24  morning and seven in the afternoon.  Is that

         25  considered two separate deliveries? Charged at two
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          2  separate prices, or is there a pre- negotiated price

          3  for the entire 10,000 gallons.

          4                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: No. The invoice

          5  comes in on the 3,000 gallons and that's what you

          6  are going to pay.  Then the next load comes in,

          7  that's what you are going to pay.  Gasoline in the

          8  last several years has never been as volatile. My

          9  prices have stayed the same for six months.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Right.  In

         11  periods of stability the provisions of Intro. 296

         12  would not need to kick in.  There would be no

         13  apparent need for the provisions of 296.  It is only

         14  when the conditions are ripe for price gouging that

         15  the provisions would kick in for price gouging.  In

         16  fact, that is the very reason why I think a measure

         17  like Intro. 296- A is necessary.

         18                 You testified just before, about

         19  three or four minutes ago, that you would be happy

         20  to provide us with copies of invoices.

         21                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Yes sir.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Okay.  So,

         23  presumably you would be able to provide us with a

         24  fair number, given that there are thousands of gas,

         25  according to the Department of Consumer Affairs,
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          2  1,600 gas stations in the City.  Perhaps not all of

          3  them are members of your Association, but I would

          4  gather that a large number of them are members of

          5  your Association.

          6                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Yes sir.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So say you have

          8  hundreds of, actually you may have already

          9  testified, I don't see it right now, but let's say

         10  you have hundreds of members.  Would you say that is

         11  a fair point?

         12                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Yes, easily.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So hundreds of

         14  members all of whom are taking, you know, at least a

         15  couple hundred of deliveries a year.

         16                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Certainly.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: So, we are

         18  talking about, you would have access to thousands of

         19  invoices.

         20                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Could you give us

         22  a fair number of examples of invoices, separate

         23  deliveries or what you call partial deliveries

         24  taking place on the same day.

         25                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: You are asking me
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          2  for a lot of work here.  And, if it's necessary I

          3  certainly will.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: No, no.  I'm not

          5  asking you to do something that you didn't offer to

          6  do.  So you offered to give us invoices.

          7                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: No, I offered to

          8  take you to a service station and show you the

          9  difference in what they pay and what they sell the

         10  product for.  You asked me whether or not I could go

         11   -- how many got partial deliveries and they

         12  estimate between ten and fifteen percent, because I

         13  know of the partial deliveries, now you are asking

         14  me to go through thousands of invoices to find out

         15   --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: No, no, I'm not

         17  asking for thousands.  I would say, you know maybe

         18  just give us a hundred examples.

         19                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: I'd have to go

         20  through thousands to find those hundreds.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: No, you wouldn't,

         22  you would have to go through seven hundred to get a

         23  hundred.  Because ten to fifteen percent of them are

         24  ten to fifteen percent of the time, that the gas

         25  stations are getting multiple deliveries per day.
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          2                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: I accept your

          3  challenge --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Okay.

          5                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: -- If you will

          6  consider to include the wholesaler in your bill.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Mr. Chairman, I

          8  would ask that we take a look at that and to see

          9  how, in what way we would have the authority to look

         10  at the wholesalers.  The Department of Consumer

         11  Affairs already regulates the gas stations at the

         12  retail level.  And to some extent that is what we

         13  are focused on from the consumer point of view.

         14                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: I understand.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Are you saying

         16  that most independent dealers are not computerized

         17  at this time?

         18                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: No, I didn't say

         19  that sir.  It's in progress.  Many, many dealers are

         20  becoming more and more computerized every single

         21  day.  There are some out there that are not.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  What's an

         23  independent dealer now days.

         24                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Well, the industry

         25  is quite diverse.  An independent dealer could be a
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          2  dealer, as we define it, is operating a service

          3  station that is owned, the land is owned or

          4  controlled by a major supplier and then the dealer

          5  rents the land

          6  from that supplier and has a franchise agreement

          7  with the supplier and a supply agreement and that's

          8  what we call independent. There are many stations

          9  that the dealer owns the land and then goes to a

         10  supplier and gets a supply contract.  Then there are

         11  stations out there are stations out there that are

         12  owned by the company and operated by the company.

         13  So it's quite a diversity out there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes.  And your

         15  association deals with anyone who calls themselves

         16  independent or is there a segment of the independent

         17  industry that's not aligned with the organization.

         18                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Most of the dealers

         19  who rent the stations and are franchised with the

         20  major oil companies, that's who our members are.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I'm sorry. Would

         22  you say that again.

         23                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Most of our members

         24  either they rent the station from a major oil

         25  company or own the land and have a supply agreement
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          2  with a major oil company.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes, but that's

          4  not what I'm asking.  Are there dealers out there

          5  that are not registered with your network.

          6                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Oh yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: That are

          8  independent?

          9                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: No, they wouldn't be

         10  members of ours but they are still independent

         11  dealers.  Sure.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes.  So, they

         13  are just out there on their own without any support

         14  system?

         15                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: They get the

         16  protection of whatever we do.  I'm here today.  They

         17  still get their protection.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I see.  So, as

         19  far as you know your independent association, how do

         20  you network with them at this particular time?

         21                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Well, emails have

         22  become a big deal for us.  I had to learn how to do

         23  that stuff, you know my old mind works very slowly.

         24  We have field representatives that go out to the

         25  field and we have to deal with a host of problems,
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          2  they also deal with the repair part of the business

          3  and that's very, very bureaucratic.  We have faxes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Repair of the

          5  physical amenities or repair of the physical plant

          6  itself.

          7                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Repair of the motor

          8  vehicle.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Pardon me?

         10                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: The motor vehicle.

         11  We repair cars as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Oh, okay.  Some

         13  of them are car repair.

         14                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Many are.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Many of

         16  them.

         17                 I just want to for your own

         18  information, you alluded in page three of your

         19  testimony about if the government wanted to help in

         20  talking about the United States Senate sending a

         21  document outlining the problems.  Most of the

         22  solutions that they recommended as you should know

         23  are required Federal action not State or local

         24  action and my staff, I want to thank Brian Sogol for

         25  looking at that report and giving us the background
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          2  on it.  It deals with higher levels of government

          3  and we can deal with that this particular level but

          4  we will be looking at it.  What you spoke about

          5  talking about the 1973 as it relates to Katrina, I

          6  don't think it's really applicable, it's a different

          7  day and if your stations are already starting email

          8  back and forth to each other, I think it's soon an

          9  order for them to maintain everything that they need

         10  to do to be cost efficient.  I can't see many

         11  stations that wouldn't be computerized within the

         12  next two to three years, if they are not

         13  computerized now, being able to maintain their

         14  ability to keep up with the market.

         15                 You talked about the wholesale prices

         16  dictate your gas prices at the pump, but are you

         17  insinuating that you don't know what that price will

         18  be until the truck pulls up to the station?

         19                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: The earliest we ever

         20  know is the morning of the delivery.  In most cases

         21  we don't know until the truck comes to the station.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And in most cases

         23  you don't know until the truck comes to the station.

         24  But you have some idea through your Association what

         25  the daily wholesale price is going to be.
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          2                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Not really.  I'm not

          3  sure if you are familiar with the terminal pricing

          4  or rack pricing.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: The pricing out

          6  of the depot.

          7                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: They change daily

          8  and they can fluctuate from minus five to minus ten

          9  to plus ten.  We get the service in our office and

         10  from one day to the next it can swing ten cents

         11  minus to ten cents plus.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: But, isn't it

         13  true that the price you fix at the pump is not

         14  regulated.  You could get a gallon or delivery at

         15  one particular price but you are not incumbered or

         16  restricted to set any price you wish?

         17                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Yes, we can price

         18  whatever we want to, but competition restricts that

         19  price.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right. So, it's

         21  the competition that restricts the price.

         22                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: May I give you an

         23  example sir?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Sure.

         25                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: We have one major
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          2  oil company that restricts our people to a twelve

          3  cent margin.  Twelve cents on a credit card sale,

          4  the dealer makes three to four cents.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You're restricted

          6  to a twelve cent margin even if the person no matter

          7  what method of payment?

          8                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: Yes.  Let me tell

          9  you how they do it.  If the dealer were to say I

         10  need thirteen cents today, that company raises their

         11  wholesale price so that it is still only twelve

         12  cents.  So we are restricted by competition, a brand

         13  that is very popular in the City especially.  Many

         14  oil companies out there are very, very aggressive so

         15  the market so that the competition is very, very

         16  stringent.  The margins at most of the stations run

         17  up to fifteen cents a gallon and if there is

         18  anything higher than that they are surprising at a

         19  very low number.  And then, if we decide to go

         20  higher we are in many cases stopped by our supplier,

         21  because we have a franchise with them and our future

         22  and the repairs on our station, whatever happens to

         23  it is in their hands.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  So you are

         25  saying your prices, well, technically you could set
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          2  your own prices, you're restricted by your suppliers

          3  who are wishing to maintain somewhat of an evil

          4  level playing field.  Evil level playing field, I

          5  said that deliberately because they are giving you

          6  not the opportunity to be truly independent.  They

          7  are only giving you the opportunity to sell their

          8  product.

          9                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: That's about right.

         10  We can't buy it from anyone else, we can't shop

         11  anywhere else, we've got to buy it from them and we

         12  must pay the price that they tell us.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  All right.

         14    I want to thank you for coming down and I know

         15  that your testimony will be helpful to us in making

         16  sure our bill is shaped to protect the consumer and

         17  also deal with the realities that are out there.

         18                 Mr. Corlett, you talked about the AAA

         19  web site and the AAA website does talk about gas

         20  stations, but does your web site just a total

         21  referral to the other two web sites that you list?

         22  Your web site doesn't talk about gas prices at

         23  particular stations on the AAA web site?

         24                 MR. CORLETT: That's correct.  It

         25  links to other web sites where you can punch in your
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          2  zip code and find the cheapest gas in your

          3  neighborhood.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Do you

          5  expect AAA will develop that additional resource to

          6  talk about prices on it's web site or recommend

          7  stations along their route.  Like, I'm a AAA member.

          8    I haven't used the trip link in a while, but on

          9  the trip links you use to talk about where the

         10  nearest stations are.  Would you be envisioning

         11  putting price per station on that?

         12                 MR. CORLETT: Possibly, the Oil Price

         13  Information Service contracts with many AAA

         14  affiliates around the country and we are looking at

         15  contracting with them to provide that to our

         16  members.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: And you could see

         18  the benefit of DCA doing the same thing also, or

         19  providing that information to DCA?

         20                 MR. CORLETT: As you probably know,

         21  Mr. Chairman, with our towing issues with DCA, we

         22  are not a biggest fan of DCA, I guess my suggest

         23  there would be if there is a private firm, like the

         24  Oil Price Information Service that is doing this and

         25  probably doing better than DCA ever could do, that
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          2  maybe the DCA could contract with them or at least

          3  take a look at what that would involve.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  So you are

          5  not really crazy about the efforts of DCA to develop

          6  it in- house.

          7                 MR. CORLETT: Again, we have some

          8  issues with them and I guess we are not as impressed

          9  with their performance as some other individuals may

         10  be.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  All right,

         12  thank you. Just one other question for Mr.

         13  Bombardiere.  You talked about some of the

         14  operational procedural difference between franchise

         15  gas station and an independent one.  Is there any

         16  thing else that you wanted to share with us about

         17  those differences that would make this bill more

         18  difficult for you.

         19                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: There are

         20  significantly differences that run between one

         21  suppliers program and another suppliers program.

         22  They are all different, they all operate different,

         23  they all have different requirements, they all have

         24  different rent structures, they all have different

         25  pricing practices, so just between suppliers, from
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          2  Shell to Exxon/Mobile to Gulf to so on.  I mean each

          3  franchise has a different unique situation.  If at

          4  any time, if someone wanted to take the time, I'd be

          5  happy to put one of your staff with several of my

          6  members and let them see how the industry really

          7  works and perhaps that would help.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right, well

          9  hopefully we can have the opportunity to do that

         10  before we come to a conclusion on the bill.  I think

         11  that would be a fair effort on our behalf.  I am

         12  sure that Council Member Liu and myself we can go

         13  around and hang out at some gas stations and take a

         14  look at what's going on.

         15                 MR. BOMBARDIERE: We'd love having

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right.  I

         18  just want to note again for the record that Cathy

         19  Kennedy from the New York State Petroleum Council

         20  could not be here today but provided written

         21  testimony which will be in the record.

         22                 I want to thank both you gentlemen

         23  for coming down today.  I wish you a happy and

         24  glorious July 4th, Independence Day weekend and

         25  seeing that there is no other questions, I would
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          2  call this meeting to be adjourned.

          3                 I want to thank Thomas Ferrugia, our

          4  Legislative Counsel, Brian Sogol, our Legislative

          5  Policy Analyst, Council Member Liu and Council

          6  Member Gennaro for the bills that were presented

          7  before the Committee today and wish everyone a good

          8  fourth of July holiday.  Oh yes, I want to thank our

          9  Public Advocate, Betsy Gotbaum for her initiation of

         10  Intro. 304.

         11                 With that, I will call this meeting

         12  adjourned.

         13                 (Hearing concluded at 12:28 p.m.)

         14

         15

         16  Written Testimony Of:

         17  Raj Maddiwar

         18  Attorney at Law

         19  Jamaica, New York

         20  Re. Bankruptcy Prevention

         21  And Consumer Protection Act

         22

         23

         24                 As an attorney practicing in Jamaica,

         25  Queens for eight years, I am highly in favor of the
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          2  proposed legislation by Council Member Gennaro.

          3                 As a practicing bankruptcy attorney,

          4  I have seen a tremendous amount of fraud committee

          5  by lenders and real estate "professionals."  The

          6  proposed legislation will help prevent further fraud

          7  against individuals who are already suffering from

          8  usurious and unaffordable loans.

          9  Very sincerely,

         10  Raj Maddiwar, Esq.

         11

         12

         13  Written Testimony Of:

         14  Michael Gangadeen, Esq.

         15  Gangadeen and Associates

         16  Attorneys and Counselors at Law

         17  Richmond Hill, New York

         18  Re: Local Law Int. No. 290

         19  Dear Members of the New York City Council:

         20

         21

         22                 As an attorney familiar with the

         23  plight of unsuspecting homeowners who are the

         24  victims of unregulated organizations offering

         25   "credit counseling" services, I support Int. No.
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          2  290.

          3                 Council Member Gennaro identified an

          4  all too frequent situation of individuals, many of

          5  whom are homeowners, seeking assistance from

          6  aggressive entitles calling themselves credit

          7  counselors.  Often times, these entities are

          8  predatory lenders and opportunists who are not

          9  approved pursuant to the Bankruptcy Prevention and

         10  Consumer Protection Act of 2005, to offer credit

         11  counseling services, and are merely seeking to

         12  generate a high interest, high cost loan yielding

         13  huge fees.

         14                 The homeowner, unable to pay the

         15  original mortgage, will certainly be unable to pay

         16  the high interest mortgage, resulting in the lender

         17  obtaining an interest in the homeowner's property.

         18  The homeowner will ultimately find himself stripped

         19  of not only the equity in the home, but of the home

         20  itself.

         21                 The City Council should support Int.

         22  No. 290 to address this situation and protect the

         23  consumer by requiring credit counselors who are not

         24  approved to adequately advise the consumer.

         25
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          2  Very truly yours,

          3  Michael L. Gangadeen, Esq.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 12:28 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, LENORE NAGLE, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 30th day of June 2006.
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